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Andrew “FoFo” Gilich P. O. Box 429
Biloxi, Mississippi 39533
City Council L www.biloxi.ms.us

George Lawrence, Ward 1

Felix O. Gines, Ward 2 ®© ®
Dixie Newman, Ward 3
Robert L. Deming Ill, Ward 4 l 1
Paul A. Tisdale, Ward 5

Kenny Glavan, Ward 6 established 1699
David Fayard, Ward 7

August 19 2015
Mayor and City Council
City of Biloxi, Mississippi

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of
Biloxi (municipal government and its component unit) fioe fiscal year ended September 30,
2014. The Administration of the City of Biloxi is responsible for the information presented in
this report. We believe that the accompanying information is accurate and complete and fairly
presents the financial posih of the municipal government of the City of Biloxi as of September
30, 2014 and results of operations for the fiscal year then ended.

Control Environment

The Cityds management i's responsible for
sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that City assets are safeguarded from loss and that
financial transactions are recorded timely and accurately. Reasonable assurance means that
internal controls are selected or designed to reduce the risk of asset loss corateac
bookkeeping to an acceptable level, considering the constraint that the cost of the control should
not exceed the expected benefit. Management is responsible for communicating the purpose and
importance of internal controls to employees and for igiog the resources necessary to
establish and maintain the control system.

Budgetary Controls

Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, each department director prepares a projection
of expenditures for his depmsaproeetionof reventidsér Ci t
all funds and a projection of the expenditures not included in the departmental budgets. The
revenue projections and proposed expenditures are presented to the Mayor. After reviewing the
draft budget proposal, the Mayor llimmeet with department directors to discuss their budget
reqguests. Each director must jJjustify his de
programs they propose for the coming year. When the Mayor is satisfied that the proposed
budget onforms to the objectives and goals he has set for the coming year, the entire budget
proposal is presented to the City Council. During a series of budget workshops, the City Council
will review, discuss, question and debate the proposed budget and dikieations to it. The
Council will invite public comment on the taxing and spending plan at a special public hearing.
After determining that the revenue projections in the budget are sound and that the proposed



spending is necessary to provide the llefeservices and to accomplish the program goals and
capital improvements proposed in the budget, the City Council will publish the proposed budget.
After adopting the budget for the coming year the City Council will set the property tax rate at a
level that will generate the property tax revenue necessary to raise the budgeted ad valorem tax
revenue.

Mississippi law prohibits spending in excess of the budget formally adopted by the City
Counci |l and spread upon t he QGoptedchby thd Gowencilsatsn u t e
a limit for total expenditures for each department. For management and control purposes, a
budget with greater detail is utilized by City management personnel to monitor spending. For
this purpose, the total budget of each d@pant is spread to the expenditure accounts of each
depart ment' s vari ous di vi si ons and section
computerized purchasing system prohibit unauthorized purchases in excess of the budget at the
expenditure accoutgvel.

The City utilizes an encumbrance accounting system in monitoring spending. An
encumbrance system provides for charges against the budget at the time goods or services are
ordered rather than waiting until the invoice is received or the paymmaidis.

Independent Audit
In accordance with Section &Bb-31, Miss Code of 1972 and guidelines prescribed by

the State Auditor, the financial statements presented herein have been audited by Culumber
Harvey & Associates, P.A., an independent firm of @ediPublic Accountants. The objective

of the auditords work is to provide the audi
the fairness of the Citybés financial stat eme
Section of this por t . The auditordos work involves

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

State Department of Audit regulations require the independent auditor to disclose any
instance of nostompliance with certain state laws, that may come to their attention during the
audit of the Cit ylheauditor masntest fa hatomplizande evithefenldras .
requirements applicable to each major federal program under which the City of Biloxi receives
federal financial assistance.

Managements Discussion and Analysis

Management 6 s Di s dollosvsthempinioa of the ifdepandentsaudgor
and provides a narrative overview and analysis of the basic financial statements.

Profile of the City of Biloxi (The Reporting Entity)

The City of Biloxi, Mississippi was incorporated in 1838. Biloxi isdted in Harrison
County, and its southern corporate boundary is the Gulf of Mexico. Biloxi is part of the Biloxi,
Gulfport, Pascagoula Combined Statistical Area (MSA). This area has a diverse economic base
which includes tourism, casino gaming, fishisgafood processing, shipping, shipbuilding, and
petroleum and chemical processing. Keesler Air Force Base, Naval Construction Battalion



CenterGul f port and Northrop Grumman Shipbuil di
this Combined StatisticalrAe a . The City of Biloxibés emplo
to the Cityods <citizens and visitors includi

culture and recreation, infrastructure maintenance, water and sanitation.

This report inalldes all funds of the City of Biloxi and any entity that management has determinec
be a component unit of the City of Biloxi municipal government. Component units are entities
which the primary government (the City) is financially accountable atieroentities whose
relationship with the City is such that its exclusion would create misleading or incorfipéeteial
information. The Point Cadet Development Corporation, apnofit organization, is blended in the
financial statements of the City Biloxi as a proprietary fund. During the fiscal year 03/04, the City
of Biloxi assumed responsibility for the assets, liabilities and operation of the Biloxi Port Commissi
This activity is presented as a businesg p e activity I nntwida dinandal t
statements and as a proprietary fund in the

Long-Term Financial Planning

The City ended fiscal 13/14 with a General Fund balanc87¢& million which is
adequate for the City. However, fund balanceata recurring resource therefore, its use to pay
recurring operating expenses <cannot conti nu
initiated cost reduction measures in fiscal 08/09 and 09/10. Those steps to reduce costs, included
employee atttion, hiring freezes, reductions in longevity pay, and reductions intowerand
increases in employee share of health insurance costs. Also, the City has decreased General Func
cash funding o f capital pr oj ect s .venuesTokiee Ci
expenditures wa$4.2 million (page24) on a modified accrual basis a3 million (page64)
on a budget basis for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.

Local Economy and Relevant Financial Policies

In response to the national econoraantraction, City management initiated policies to
restrict expenditures early in fiscal 08/09 including a policy of attrition and a hiring freeze.
These policies were continued in fiscal 09/10, 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.

The Cityds ¢o vceeasadsewgrrades at the end df fyscal 08/09 and again
at the end of fiscal 09/10 and the increased rates produced revenue more than adequate to cove
costs in fiscal 13/14. The City governing authority has committed to annual reviews of its public
utility fee structure with the goal of stabilizing its Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

The City has not changed its ad valorem tax rate since fiscal year 2001 when it decreased
the rate by 34.8 percent. As s h o weavenierandFi gu
sales tax revenue remained about the same as in prior year while gaming tax decreased slightly.
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The amount of construction and reconstruction in fiscal 13/14 increased from fiscal 12/13
but is still below the podfatrina peak in 06/07 as measured by the number and value of
building permis issued. The City issuel019 building permits with a total valuation of
$108796870. (Fig. 2).
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Governmental funds are used to account for most City functions and operations including
the various City depar tremem plas, Conmuity Oevelopdent t w

Bl ock Grants, capital projects, and the Ci
illustrates the relative amounts of various general governmental revenues for the fiscal year.
Usually, t he Cbourged of opetating eeverlues rfay @eneral governmental

activities are gaming tax, ad valorem tax a

funds receivedb900 thousandn operating grants an$i30.5 million in capital grants for its
governmentalactivities. The largest granting Federal departments were the Department of
Homeland Security (FEMA) and the Department of Housing and Urban Development. Federal
grant revenues are includedGther Intergovernmental

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
REVENUES FY 13/14

Fines
Other
h f 9
Charges for 2% 2%

Services
2%

Ad Valorem Tax
17%
Licenses & Permits

4%

Sales Tax
11%

Other
Intergovernmental

43% Gaming Tax and

Licenses
18%

Figure 3

Gaming tax and salesa tx are shown separately her e b
government al funds financi al statements on
Intergovernmental revenues are collected by other governmental entities such as state
government and disbuted to the City. Other Intergovernmental Revenue includes other taxes
collected by Harrison County and the State of Mississippi and state and federal grants

Property Taxes- In Mississippi, property taxes are levied by municipalities and counties
on the assessed value of land and buildings, mobile homes, automobiles, business inventory anc
equipment. Assessed value is a prescribed percentage of the true (appraised) value of each clas
of property. Classes of property and assessment ratios areddefin®ection 112 of the
Mississippi Constitution of 1890.



Class of Property Ratio

Class | Singlkdamily, owneroccupied, residential real 10%
Class Il All other real property, except Class | or IV 15%
Class lll Personal property, ext¢epotor vehicles and Class IV 15%
Class IV Public Utility property 30%
Class V Motor vehicles 30%

Ad valorem taxes are collected in arrears. The taxes for a calendar tax year are due by
February 1 of the subsequent calendar year. Eeahtiie governing authorities of the City of
Biloxi determine the total assessed value of property situated within the City limits. Prior to the
beginning of a new fiscal year, October 1, they set the tax rate (levy) that will generate the tax
revenue neded for the upcoming fiscal year. In each fiscal year, the City collects the ad
valorem taxes for the prior calendar tax year. To summarize, the formula for determining tax
revenues from each <c¢class of propertleyy=itax fAAp
amount oO.

Sales Tax- State law requires sellers of goods and services to collect and remit to the
state sales taxes of various rates specified in the statutes. A tax rate of 7% applies to retail sales
of tangible personal property. Of thex¢a collected by the state each month, 18.5% of the sales
tax revenue from activities within a municipal corporation is remitted to the municipal
government.

Gaming Taxes- All taxes on gross gaming revenue and gaming devices are collected by
the State T/a Commission, including those taxes levied by municipalities. The Gaming control
act of 1990 provided a tax of eight tenths of one perc8#t)(on casino gross gaming income.
This tax revenue is divided between Harrison County and the City in the poopof the
population of each.

House Bill 1504, Regular Session of 1992 (Local and Private Legislation) provided for a
tax of three and two tenths of one percent (3.2%) of gross gaming revenue. On the tenth day of
each month the State Tax Commission iterthe taxes collected in the previous month to the
municipality to be distributed in the following ratios:

1 20% for public safety

1 20% for education purposes (Biloxi sends this 20% to the Biloxi Separate School
District)

10% to Harrison County for publgafety purposes

10% for educational purposes in Harrison County (This 10% is distributed to the
various school districts in Harrison County in the proportion of each district student
enrollment to total enroliment of all school districts in the county.)

il
il

House Bill 1504 also provided for a licensing fee of $150, altyyufor each gaming
device. In addition to local taxes, the Mississippi Gaming Control Act, codified in chapter 76, in
title 75 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, provides that casinos pay of 8% of gross gaming
revenue to the State of Mississippi.

Figure 4 illustrates the trends i n  annt
governmental funds. Casino gaming and the resulting gaming taxes were implemented in 1992,
and since that timegaming tax revenues have become the largest, regular revenue source for the



City. Note that Other Intergovernmental Revenue increased significantly in fiscal year 05/06 due
to grants for Hurricane Katrina debris removal received by the City of Bilan fthe
Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency.
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Figure 4
General Governmental Expenditures

Figure 5 illustrates the trends in spending for the various services and functions
accounted for i n t heNo@nally,pdbkc sajety arel capitalegmjectslare f u r
the | argest expenditure categories of the C
for Public Works increased due to the cost of removing debris left by Hurricane Katrina and
capital project spnding was curtailed. Debris removal costs were completed in FY 06/07.
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Water and Sewer Fund

The City of Biloxi provides water production and distribution and sewer collection and
treatment services. The City accounts for the cost of thexrsgces and related revenues in an
enterprise fund. The Cityods goal is to pay
billing customers for their use of the service. In 2005 the City lost approximately twelve percent
of its customer bade the destruction of Hurricane Katrina.

A |l arge portion of the cost of water/ sewe
the Harrison County Utility Authority, which provides sewer treatment service. Because the
debt servicesits (doesi xedovary due to the nu
rates, applied to the consumption of the reduced number of customers, did not generate revenue
sufficient to cover the cost of services. The City increased water and sewer ratesnat oie e
fiscal year 08/09 and again at the end of 09/10. The City decreased rates slightly in 11/12. The
Cityds governing authority has committed to
and maintain 100 percent cost recovery.

WATER/SEWER FUND
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Respectfully submitted,

David Nichols, Chief Administration Officer

W7 7Vl o

Scott McElroy, C}x(trf)l‘l\ér /
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Organizational Chart
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CULUMBER, HARVEY
& ASSOCIATES, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

Independent Auditors' Report

To the City Council
City of Biloxi, Mississipi

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental acthaties,
businesgype activities,each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatitmeof
City of Biloxi, Mississippj asof and for the year ended September 30,42@hd the related
notes to the financial statememich collectively comprise the Citgf Biloxi, Mississippd s
basic financial statements astéid in the table of contents.

Management 6 s RdéaeshHnancia Stddementst y f or t

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementatjoand maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditords Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions thiese financial statements based on our audie
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contaiGm/énnment
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United StafBlsose standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing proderes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statementd he procedures selected d
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control rel evant to the e
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the ciresn$tainoot

for the purpose of expressing an opinion or
Accordingly, we express no such opinioAn audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness

of accounting policies used and the reasonablewfesignificant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the bugypesactivities, each

major fund, and the aggregate remainingdfunformation of the City oBiloxi, Mississippj as

of SeptembeB0, 204, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted irthe United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management s di scussion and anal yspagesl5aldad bu
and 6364 be presented to supplement the basic financial statem&uish information, although

not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential partaoiciah reporting for placing the

basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical coMext.

have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards genesathccepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management
statementsand other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opnjorovide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City ofBiloxi, Mississippd s basic finamlei al
introductory section, combimg and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and
statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statement3he schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented fo
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Roofit Organizations and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and ndividual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of

expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basid financia
statements.Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit

13



of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accayghtand other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion,the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sects have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In acordance withGovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our repoatedAugust

19,2055, on our consideration of the City of Bi
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisainkws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matfdrs.purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide apinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance.That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordanc&waitbrnment
Auditing Standard@ consideringhe City of Biloxi, Mississippb s i nt er nal cont r c
reporting and compliance.

&L}?zw;@f% '}l}a/t,w# ¥ &mﬁéwﬂ? RA.

Gulfport, Mississippi
August 192015
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Management 6s Discussion and Analy

Brief Discussion ofthe Basic Financial Statements

The Cityods mapaeed thisriEscussiorhaadsanglysis to provide an objective
anal ysis of the Citybds financi al activitie:
financi al statements which form a part of t
(CAFR). The basic financial statements are presented in three parts: govemucheihancial
statements, fund financial statements and the notes to financial statements.

Governmentwide financial statementsfocus on the overall financial position and
activitesd t he City, in total, rat her than th
all governmental activities are consolidated into a column and all busgypesactivities

are consolidated into a column. The two columns are added to present ar tibtalGity

as a whole. These statements include the Statemblet fositionwhich discloses all of

the Cityds assets and | i abi Inétposiom. andl sl
included is the Statement of Activities which focuses on tis¢ af services provided and
activities performed by the City and the source of money used to pay for the services and
activities. The Statement mdtpoditotincreasetl i e s
or decreased during the fiscal year. Botlthe governmentvide financial statements
segregate functions of the City that are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (governmental activities) from those functions that are mainly supported
through charges to the consumer (busikigge a¢ i vi t i es) . The City
utilities and the Ci t-typé activihes.r The govyeramentitlei o n s
financial statements present information for both governmental funds and proprietary
funds on the accrual basis of accounting

Fund financial statementsfollow the governmentvide statements. These statements
present the balance sheets and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes ir
fund balance of the Cityds funds. IThe f
funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Some examples of the differences
between the governmentde financial statements and the governmental fund financial
statements, inherent in the differences in the basis of accounting are:

Under the mdified accrual basis of accounting, capital outlays are expenditures
of resources with no offsetting capital asset increase because capital assets are not
shown on the balance sheet.

Principal payments on loAgrm debt are reported as expenditures with
offsetting reduction of liabilities because leteggm liabilities are not show on the
balance sheet.

The proceeds of debt borrowing is reported as an increase (inflow) of expendable
resources with no offsetting increase in liabilities.

A fund is a fisal and accounting entity with a balanced set of accounts for
recording and disclosing the reporting e
segregated for specific activities including the amount of resources received, the amount
expended, liabilies owed and the residual balance (equity) of the funds. The City uses

15



funds to segregate resources and resource use according to the purpose for which the
resources were segregated. The objective of fund accounting is to demonstrate
compliance with budgtary and legal requirements that apply to the resources segregated
in each fund.

In the fund financial statements, each of the €i6 s ma js presenfediin a s
separ at e c ol wmonmajor funfishaee cainbimey é&nd the totals presented in
onecolumn. The distinction between governmental type activities and proprietary type
activities is maintained through the presentation of separate statefoetiese two
types of funds

Governmental fundsare used to account for governmental functionghefCity
of Biloxi including administration, executive, legislative, legal (general governmental
activities), public safety, public works, parks and recreation, public health and welfare,
capital projects and debt service. These are the functions thapresented as
AGovernment al Ac t i vwide ffirarial statementsh Bresgntatioe aof N me
financi al i nformation for the Cityds go\V
presented in the governmenmide financial statements because theufowf fund
accounting is on nederm inflows and outflows of spendable resources and the balances
of spendable resources available at yevad.

Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise
funds are used for thosetiadies which are financed, primarily, by charges to users and
customers. Internal service funds are used for city activities that provide goods or
services for the Cityods various funds an
Fund. Inthe gowamentwi de f i nanci al statements-thes
type activitieso.

Notes tothe Financial Statementsprovide additional information to explain the data
presented in the basic financial statements.

Governmentwide Condensed Datda Governmentabnd Businessype Activities

Table 1
City of Biloxi
Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assets $ 84,851,845 $ 53,153,403 $ 14,049,016 $ 12,590,465 $ 98,900,861 $ 65,743,868
Capital assets 292,965,880 269,716,962 150,537,532 130,305,940 443,503,412 400,022,902
Total assets $ 377,817,725 $ 322,870,365 $ 164,586,548 $ 142,896,405 $ 542,404,273 $ 465,766,770
Current & other liabilties $ 19,752,489 $ 13,201,616 $ 15,557,580 $ 13,121,442 $ 35,310,069 $ 26,323,058
Long-term liabilties 85,364,190 52,871,195 5,470,509 6,198,100 90,834,699 59,069,295
Total liabilties 105,116,679 66,072,811 21,028,089 19,319,542 126,144,768 85,392,353
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 208,874,271 217,689,178 144,899,350 124,415,356 353,773,621 342,104,534
Restricted 55,596,738 26,040,170 851,135 844,640 56,447,873 26,884,810
Unrestricted 8,230,037 13,068,206 (2,192,026) (1,683,133) 6,038,011 11,385,073
Total net position $ 272,701,046 $ 256,797,554 $ 143,558,459 $ 123,576,863 $ 416,259,505 $ 380,374,417
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Table 2

City of Biloxi
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services $ 7,370,067 $ 8,113,989 $ 15,622,816 $ 15,117,700 $ 22,992,883 $ 23,231,689

Operating grants 902,346 2,310,684 - - 902,346 2,310,684

Capital grants and contributions 43,981,867 30,528,891 1,939,175 4,450,601 45,921,042 34,979,492
General revenues

Property taxes 18,061,043 18,065,315 223,650 230,264 18,284,693 18,295,579

Intergovernmental, unrestricted 14,493,067 13,915,324 - - 14,493,067 13,915,324

Gaming taxes 18,805,326 18,878,204 - - 18,805,326 18,878,204

Other revenues 1,950,340 2,207,928 13,534 18,373 1,963,874 2,226,301

Total revenues 105,564,056 94,020,335 17,799,175 19,816,938 123,363,231 113,837,273
Expenses

General government 5,789,900 5,749,015 - - 5,789,900 5,749,015

Parks and recreation 6,920,693 5,999,954 - - 6,920,693 5,999,954

Public safety 36,417,140 34,082,368 - - 36,417,140 34,082,368

Public works 10,652,115 11,876,265 - - 10,652,115 11,876,265

Community development 3,861,583 6,720,748 - - 3,861,583 6,720,748

Unallocated depreciation 3,043,524 2,630,920 - - 3,043,524 2,630,920

Interest on long-term debt 2,161,010 2,766,751 - - 2,161,010 2,766,751

Water and sewer service - - 15,459,099 14,236,840 15,459,099 14,236,840

Port Fund activities - - 2,973,079 2,547,550 2,973,079 2,547,550

Point Cadet Development Corporation - - 200,000 - 200,000 -

Total expenses 68,845,965 69,826,021 18,632,178 16,784,390 87,478,143 86,610,411
Special Item - 13,053,391 - - - 13,053,391
Increase (decrease) in net position

before transfers 36,718,091 37,247,705 (833,003) 3,032,548 35,885,088 40,280,253
Transfers (20,814,599) (22,519,734) 20,814,599 22,519,734 - -
Net increase (decrease) in net position 15,903,492 14,727,971 19,981,596 25,552,282 35,885,088 40,280,253
Net position, beginning of year 256,797,554 242,069,583 123,576,863 98,024,581 380,374,417 340,094,164
Net position, end f year $ 272,701,046 $  256,797554 $ 143558459 $ 123576863 $ 416259505 $ 380,374,417

Overall Financial Position and Results ofOperations

The netposition of governmental activitiesdreased by$15.9 million while the fund
balances of governmental funiereagd by $25.4 million. The positive change in net assets is
reconciled to theincreag in fund balances of governmental funds in the schedule titled
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, ExpenditamesChanges in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activitie®ne major reconciling item is capital
expenditures which decrease fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements. These
capital expenditures are reported asréases in capital assets in Batement of Net Assets
rather than as an expense on the statemdhafiges in Net Assets

The netposition of businesdype activities (Water and Sewer Fund and Port Fund)
increased bys20 million during FY 13/14 Thei ncr ease was due to tr a
General Fund and Capital Projects Fund. City management expects méhsaveer rates to be
adequate to pay the costs of water and sewer utility services for FY. 13/14
Analysis of Significant Balancesand Operation of Individual Funds
Fund Balances
General Fund-The Gener al Fund i s t he THeiCityyegan figtal i ma |
year 13/14with a General Fund balance $f17 million and ended the year with a fund balance
of $75 million. The derease oft4.2million is attributable to a decrease in revenues.

Debt Service Fund-The fund balance in the Cityods de

17



principal and interest maturities due at the beginning of each fiscal year before ad valorem tax
revenues collections for the year are sufficient to cover debt service for theAgaalorem tax
revenue is the primary resource of the Debt Service Funghyment of interest and principal

Water and Sewer Fundi In prior years, evenues and other Waitand Sewer Fund resources
were not beemdequate to pay the cost of operations. The Water and Sewer Fund incurred an
operating loss 08%1,226,758which includesdepreciation expensef $1911,944million. The

City incurred a operatingincome before depciation of$685,186thousand for FY 13/14The
Cityods wat er wene clatigely Wow rcompaeetl & sother rsece providers in
Mississippi. The loss of a significant number of utility customers due to destruction of
residences and businessesHhyricane Katrina further exacerbated this proble&t.the end of

fiscal 08/09 the Governing Authority increaseater and sewerates by approximately 150
percent and again increased rates at the end of FY 09/10. The Governing Authority slightly
loweredr at es in FY 10/ 11. The Cityods governing
adjustments will provide sufficient revenue to stabilize the Water and Sewer Fund in future fiscal
years.

General Capital Projects Fundi The General Capital Projectsiid holdsbond proceeds and
insurance claim proceeds which will be expended as projects progréssincrease in fund
balance of the General Capital Projects Fund resulted from federal grants received for
infrastructure improvements paid by the Cityhe prior fiscal year.

Budget Variance in the General Fund

The Basic Financi al Statements include a
General Fund revenues and expenditures. The comparison is made on the cash basis which
differs from modified acwal because receivables and payables are not recognized. An

explanation of the budget basis is provided
authority originally budgeted a reduction i
of $317 thousand. At yeaend, the actual reduction wg2.3mi | | i on . The Citydé
budget basis fund balance fell frab million to $2.7mi | | i on . Revenues of

Fund were below expectations by $1.6 million. City management blasta keep actual
expenditures below the budgeted expenditure$ymillion. The net transferis werebelow
budget by$2.6 million. During the year the City Council amended the budgetarily, for
grant awards and related expenditures.

Capital Asses Activity

During FY 13/14the Cityincreased its investment itapital asset$or governmental
activities by$23.2 million, net of dispositions and depreciatiorzor business type activities
(Water/Sewer and Port) the City increased its investmecapital assets b$20.2million after
dispositions and depreciation. Most of the additions were for construction of facilities and
infrastructur e. Much of the Cit ySeaetaildpte t a l
lll. F, for additional inbrmation concerning capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended
September 3@014

Long-term Debt

At the beginning of the fiscal year the City of Biloxi had outstanding debt conssting
general obligation bonds, notes, limited obligation bondsnartels, and pollution control loans.
These outstanding debts totalesi’$18,368at the beginning of the fiscal yea8/14. During
the fiscal year 13/14he City paid$5,353,1560f principal and pai®2,011,880 of interest on all
debt. The City borronk$169,579 from the Mississippi Pollution Control Loans to fund capital
project spending. The City also issuéduet bonds: (1) a $14,000,000 bond to fund capital
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projects, (2) a $21,000,000 to construct a minor league baseball stadidrn(3) a $1,99500

tax increment finance bond fand capital projects So, total outstanding delmcreasedby
$31,811,423in fiscal 13/14. In the Supplemental Information section of the financial report is a
schedule titled Schedule of Lofigrm Debt which disclosehé beginning balances of each
debt, new debt incurred and the principal amount paid during the year.

State laws limit the amount of debt a municipality may incur. General obligation bonded
debt, excluding debt issued for utility purposes, is limited 38 Iof assessed valuatiorAll
debt, excluding utility revenue debt and tax increment financing bonds, is subject to a limit of
20% of assessed valueNote lll. Hdi scl oses the Cityodos compl
limitations

Credit Rating

When a govarmental entity issues bonds, it may obtain aaxgatrom one or more of the
bond. Whena governmental entity issues bonds, it may obtain a rating from one or more of the
bond rating agenci es. The rating i dtamd mea
provides a means whereby investors may measure the risk of their investment in the bonds.

On May 21, 2012Standar®@ Poor 6 s Rating Ser vdiemnaangr ai s
from BBB+ to AA- with a stable outlook. On March 30, 2014, Standard Poor 6 s Ra
Service affirmed that AAf or t he -tCétmbésat iomg. Standard &
rational was based on:

1 Historically very strong financial reserves that allowed it to absorb the loss of
revenues associated with the impact affitane Katrina,

1 Stable tax base; and

1 Moderate overall debt burden.

On August 11, 2006 Moodyds I nvestors Ser
of Biloxi 0s gener al obligation rating of |
Katrina, Moody ds I nvestors Ser vi SBeeDetaibNote dl. Htaldehe Ci t vy
Supplementary Information section of the CAFR for additional information concerning the
CityoédhedelCtit ydbs credit ratings ha\waeoverratngs be e |
by Standard and Poordés Ratings Services and
$34,020,000 Tax Increment Limited Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2006A and B, issued
during FY 06/07 were not rated.

Contact Information

Questionsconcerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Controller, Scott McElroy, City of
Biloxi, P.O. Box 429, Biloxi, MS 39533.
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Basic Financial Statements



Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Taxes
Customer accounts, net
Grants
Other
Prepaids
Net pension obligation
Inventories
Mortgage loans receivable
Capital assets
Land and construction in progress

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2014

Primary Government

Other (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Position
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accounts payable fromrestricted assets

Customer deposits payable fromrestricted assets

Internal balances
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Bonds and notes
Compensated absences

Claims payable fromrestricted assets

Due beyond one year
Bonds and notes
Compensated absences

Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Public safety
Claims
Debt service
Grant expenditures
Capital improvements
Endowment, expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 25539290 $ 3,673,430 $ 29,212,720
600 1,252,426 1,253,026
31,745,919 851,135 32,597,054
6,247,043 4,243 6,251,286
138,783 1,642,247 1,781,030
8,999,882 5,683,173 14,683,055
1,680,633 715,374 2,396,007
1,038,687 - 1,038,687
9,448,671 - 9,448,671
- 226,988 226,988
12,337 - 12,337
91,031,053 69,277,089 160,308,142
201,934,827 81,260,443 283,195,270
377,817,725 164,586,548 542,404,273
21,575,187 309,777 21,884,964
- 25,622 25,622
- 1,190,328 1,190,328
(13,509,461) 13,509,461 -
196,920 - 196,920
4,840,605 433,712 5,274,317
2,037,729 88,680 2,126,409
4,611,509 - 4,611,509
79,251,004 5,204,470 84,455,474
6,113,186 266,039 6,379,225
105,116,679 21,028,089 126,144,768
208,874,271 144,899,350 353,773,621
2,118,923 - 2,118,923
424,796 - 424,796
17,694,871 415,575 18,110,446
42,899 - 42,899
35,284,221 435,560 35,719,781
31,028 - 31,028
8,230,037 (2,192,026) 6,038,011
$ 272,701,046 $ 143558459 $ 416,259,505
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Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities
General Government
Parks and Recreation
Public Safety
Public Works

Community Development

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Po

Unallocated Depreciation, Infrastructure 3,043,524

Interest and Other, Long-term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Water and Sewer
Biloxi Port Fund

Point Cadet Development Corporation
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 5,789,900 $ 675 $ 75,429 % - $ (5,713,796) $ - $ (5,713,796
6,920,693 523,550 - 370,316 (6,026,827) - (6,026,827
36,417,140 1,222,643 428,942 370,100 (34,395,455) - (34,395,455
10,652,115 1,455,771 94,867 37,353,757 28,252,280 - 28,252,280
3,861,583 4,167,428 303,108 5,887,694 6,496,647 - 6,496,647
- - - (3,043,524) - (3,043,524
2,161,010 - - - (2,161,010) - (2,161,010
68,845,965 7,370,067 902,346 43,981,867 (16,591,685) - (16,591,685
15,459,099 14,120,797 - 989,091 - (349,211) (349,211)
2,973,079 1,477,090 - 950,084 - (545,905) (545,905)
200,000 24,929 - - - (175,071) (175,071)
18,632,178 15,622,816 - 1,939,175 - (1,070,187) (1,070,187
87,478,143 22,992,883 902,346 45,921,042 (16,591,685) (1,070,187) (17,661,872
General revenues

Property taxe 18,061,043 223,650 18,284,693
Intergovernmental, unrestricte 14,493,067 - 14,493,067
Gaming taxes 18,805,326 - 18,805,326
Other taxes 519,032 - 519,032
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Unrestricted investment earnings 20,323 13,534 33,857
Miscellaneous 210,985 - 210,985

Transfers (20,814,599) 20,814,599 -
Total general revenues and transfers 32,495,177 21,051,783 53,546,960
Change in net position 15,903,492 19,981,596 35,885,088
Net position - beginning of period 256,797,554 123,576,863 380,374,417

Net position - end of period

$272,701,046 $ 143,558,459

$416,259,505

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2@1

Tax Increment

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Receivables:
Taxes
Customer accounts, net
Grants
Other
Due from other city funds
Prepaids
Mortgage loans receivable
Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilitie$ 4,567,267

Due to other city funds
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable

Prepaids

Long-term Receivables
Restricted for

Public Safety

Claims

Endowment
Committed for

Grant Expenditures

Capital Improvements

Debt Service
Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

Junior Lien
General Limited 2014 2014 Other

Capital Debt Obligation General Special Non-Major Total
General Projects Service Bond Series Obligation Obligation ~ Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund 2014 Bond Fund Bond Series Funds Funds
$ 5,896,793 $ 8,994,934 $ 7,605,420 $ 3319 $ - $ - $ 485120 $ 22,985,586
600 - - - - - - 600
- - 12 - 12,757,587 17,226,027 1,762,293 31,745,919
6,215,124 - 25,010 - - - 6,909 6,247,043
138,783 - - - - - - 138,783
251,418 8,748,464 - - - - - 8,999,882
460,900 - 1,200,000 - - - 19,733 1,680,633
76,082 19,078,302 8,925,819 - 17,972 - - 28,098,175
1,038,687 - - - - - - 1,038,687
- - - - - - 12,337 12,337
$14,078,387 $36,821,700 $ 17,756,261 3,319 $12,775,559 $17,226,027 $ 2,286,392 $ 100,947,645
$18,989,192 $ 43,418 $ - 0% - 8 - $ 13,039 $ 23,612,916
1,946,802 13,304,992 17,972 - 359,161 1,096,089 - 16,725,016
38,253 158,667 - - - - - 196,920
6,552,322 32,452,851 61,390 359,161 1,096,089 13,039 40,534,852
1,038,687 - - - - - - 1,038,687
- - - - - - 12,337 12,337
2,118,923 - - - - - - 2,118,923
- - - - - - 424,796 424,796
- - - - - - 31,028 31,028
- - - - - - 42,899 42,899
603,424 4,368,849 - 3,319 12,416,398 16,129,938 1,762,293 35,284,221
- - 17,694,871 - - - - 17,694,871
3,765,031 - - - - - - 3,765,031
7,526,065 4,368,849 17,694,871 3,319 12,416,398 16,129,938 2,273,353 60,412,793
$14,078,387 $36,821,700 $ 17,756,261 $ 3,319 $12,775,559 $17,226,027 $ 2,286,392 $ 100,947,645

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2014

Total fund balances of governmental funds on the balance sheet, page 22 $ 60,412,793

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net postition
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 292,965,880

Internal service funds are used by management to account for the costs of the
City's risk management, including insurance. The assets and liabilties of the
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement
of net position 78,497

Net pension obligation 9,448,671

Long-term liabilties, including bonds payable are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Notes Payable (5,350,497)

Bonds Payable (78,485,000)

Capital leases payable (256,112)

Compensated absences (6,113,186) (90,204,795
Net posttion of governmental activities, page 20 $272,701,046

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
23



For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Tax Increment

Junior Lien
General Limited 2014 2014 Other
Capital Debt Obligation General Special Nonmajor Total
General Projects Service Bond Series  Obligation Obligation Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund 2014 Bond Fund Bond Series Funds Funds
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 10,157,816 - $ 6561534 $ -3 -8 - $ 1,341,693 $ 18,061,043
Licenses and permits 4,105,012 - - - - - - 4,105,012
Intergovernmental 31,253,214 42,235,386 1,233,608 - - - 303,108 75,025,316
Charges for services 1,930,054 - - - - - - 1,930,054
Fines 1,582,593 - - - - 1,582,593
Other 3,337,288 - 13,058 1 817 870 131,448 3,483,482
Total revenues 52,365,977 42,235,386 7,808,200 1 817 870 1,776,249 104,187,500
Expenditures
Current:
General government 4,828,819 - - - - - 12,923 4,841,742
Parks and recreation 4,154,492 - - - - - - 4,154,492
Public safety 28,971,027 - - - - - 1,341,693 30,312,720
Public works 9,008,665 - - - - - - 9,008,665
Community development 3,432,459 - - - - - 420,062 3,852,521
Non-departmental 5,390,673 - - - - - - 5,390,673
Debt service
Principal retirement - - 4,742,428 - - - - 4,742,428
Interest and other - - 1,848,628 - - - - 1,848,628
Bond issue costs - - - 59,000 318,588 245,500 - 623,088
Capital outlay, projects - 30,460,296 - - - - - 30,460,296
Total expenditures 55,786,135 30,460,296 6,591,056 59,000 318,588 245,500 1,774,678 95,235,253
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (3,420,158) 11,775,090 1,217,144 (58,999) (317,771) (244,630) 1,571 8,952,247
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds - - - 1,995,000 14,310,706 21,000,000 - 37,305,706
Transfers in - 9,301,508 - - - - - 9,301,508
Transfers out (828,922)  (21,011,900) - (1,932,682)  (1,576,537)  (4,625,432) (140,634) (30,116,107
Total other financing
sources (uses) (828,922)  (11,710,392) - 62,318 12,734,169 16,374,568 (140,634) 16,491,107
Net change in fund balance (4,249,080) 64,698 1,217,144 3,319 12,416,398 16,129,938 (139,063) 25,443,354
Fund balances, beginning of year 11,775,145 4,304,151 16,477,727 - - - 2,412,416 34,969,439
Fund balances, end of year $ 7,526,065 $ 4,368,849 $17,694,871 $ 3,319 $12,416,398 $16,129,938 $ 2,273,353 $ 60,412,793

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September3mi4

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances of governmental funds, page 24 $ 25,443,354

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated ove
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Expenditures for capital assets 30,447,577
Less: current year depreciation (8,841,095) 21,606,482

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds payable) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilties in the
statement of net position. Repayment of borrowed principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduced long-term liabilties in the
statement of net position. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeds
repayments.

Bond proceeds (36,995,000)
Principal payments 4,742,428
Lease payments 188,747 (32,063,825

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide current financial
resources and there are not reported as revenues in governmental funds.

Donated assets 1,376,381
Seized assets 370,100
Basis of assets sold (104,045) 1,642,436

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and there are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Change in net pension obligation (386,530)
Change in long-term compensated absences (338,600) (725,130,

Internal service funds are used by management to allocate the cost of self insuring
to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is
reported with governmental activities. 175

Change in net position of governmental activities, page 21 $ 15,903,492

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Restricted cash
Investments
Receivables:
Customer accounts, net

Customer accounts earned but

not billed
Grants
Taxes
Other
Due from other city funds
Supplies inventory
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accounts payable fromrestricted assets
Customer deposits payable from

restricted assets

Current portion of bond and notes

Compensated absences
Due to other city funds

Claims contingency payable from

restricted assets
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences
Notes payable, non-current

Total non-current liabilities

Total liahilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmenta
Major Fund Non-Major Fund Activities
Water Biloxi Point Cadet Total Internal
And Port Development Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Corporation Funds Funds
$ 2259585 $ 1241875 $ 171970 $ 3,673430 $ 2553704
1,147,294 105,132 - 1,252,426 -
- 851,135 - 851,135 -
1,001,528 30,158 - 1,031,686 -
610,561 - - 610,561 -
2,513,136 3,170,037 - 5,683,173 -
- 4,243 - 4,243 -
715,374 - - 715,374 -
4,303,091 - - 4,303,091 2,136,302
226,988 - - 226,988 -
12,777,557 5,402,580 171,970 18,352,107 4,690,006
112,446,734 37,974,716 116,082 150,537,532 -
112,446,734 37,974,716 116,082 150,537,532 -
125,224,291 43,377,296 288,052 168,889,639 4,690,006
284,168 25,609 - 309,777 -
25,622 - - 25,622 -
1,085,196 105,132 - 1,190,328 -
278,712 155,000 - 433,712 -
37,293 51,387 88,680 -
117,450 17,695,102 - 17,812,552 -
- - - - 4,611,509
1,828,441 18,032,230 - 19,860,671 4,611,509
111,878 154,161 - 266,039
4,269,470 935,000 - 5,204,470 -
4,381,348 1,089,161 - 5,470,509 -
6,209,789 19,121,391 - 25,331,180 4,611,509
107,898,552 36,884,716 116,082 144,899,350 -
- 435,560 - 435,560 -
- 415,575 - 415,575 -
11,115,950 (13,479,946) 171,970 (2,192,026) 78,497
$ 119,014502 $ 24255905 $ 288,052 $ 143558459 $ 78,497

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

City of Biloxi, Mississippi

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Operating Revenues

Charges for services:

Water sales, sewer revenues
penalties & installations, net

Keesler Air Force Base, sewer

Harbor fees and rents

Insurance billings

Total charges for service
Cobra contributions
Otherincome
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personal services
Contracted services
Other services and charges
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Interest income
Interest expense

Loss on retirement of fixed assets
Intergovernmental taxrevenues

Grant revenues

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Fund Non-Major Fund Activities
Water Biloxi Point Cadet Total Internal
And Port Development Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Corporation Funds Funds
13,480,766 $ - 8 - $ 13480,766 $ -
636,206 - - 636,206 -
- 1,464,090 24,929 1,489,019 -
- - - - 12,398,428
14,116,972 1,464,090 24,929 15,605,991 12,398,428
- - - - 123,994
3,825 13,000 - 16,825 -
14,120,797 1,477,090 24,929 15,622,816 12,522,422
1,642,573 1,109,342 - 2,751,915 -
10,275,078 70,419 200,000 10,545,497 12,525,055
1,517,960 315,251 - 1,833,211 -
1,911,944 1,406,555 - 3,318,499 -
15,347,555 2,901,567 200,000 18,449,122 12,525,055
(1,226,758) (1,424,477) (175,071) (2,826,306) (2,633)
10,461 2,785 288 13,534 2,808
(91,740) (71,512) - (163,252) -
(19,804) - - (19,804) -
- 223,650 - 223,650 -
989,091 404,547 - 1,393,638 -
888,008 559,470 288 1,447,766 2,808
(338,750) (865,007) (174,783) (1,378,540) 175
545,537 - - 545,537 -
21,034,519 - - 21,034,519 -
- (219,920) - (219,920) -
21,241,306 (1,084,927) (174,783) 19,981,596 175
97,773,196 25,340,832 462,835 123,576,863 78,322
$ 119,014,502 $ 24,255,905 $ 288,052 $ 143558459 $ 78,497

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Statement of Cash Flow
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Fund Non-Major Fund Activities
Water Biloxi Point Cadet Total Internal
And Port Development Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Corporation Funds Funds
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers $ 14366692 $ 1485475 $ 24929 $ 15877,096 $ -
Receipts frominterfund services provided - - - - 12,522,422
Payments to suppliers (12,518,147) (386,775) (200,000) (13,104,922) (12,843,873
Payments for services of employees (1,613,850) (1,087,962) - (2,701,812) -
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 234,695 10,738 (175,071) 70,362 (321,451
Cash flows from non-capital
financing activities
Intergovernmental taxrevenues - 225,308 - 225,308 -
Transfers (to) from other funds - - - - -
Loans (to) from other funds 90,932 - - 90,932 (1,323,027
Net cash provided by (used in)
non-capital financing activities 90,932 225,308 - 316,240 (1,323,027
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Grant revenues (502,379) 34,528 - (467,851) -
Proceeds fromloans 169,579 - - 169,579 -
Transfers (to) from other funds (510,750) (219,920) - (730,670) -
Loans (to) from other funds 17,936 175,327 - 193,263 -
Acquisition of capital assets (3,935) - - (3,935) -
Retirement of debt (271,981) (150,000) - (421,981) -
Interest paid on debt (91,740) (71,512) - (163,252) -
Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities (1,193,270) (231,577) - (1,424,847) -
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends on investments 10,461 2,785 288 13,534 2,808
Purchase of investments - (6,495) - (6,495) -
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 10,461 (3,710) 288 7,039 2,808
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (857,182) 759 (174,783) (1,031,206) (1,641,670
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of period 4,264,061 1,346,248 346,753 5,957,062 4,195,374
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 3,406,879 $ 1,347,007 $ 171970 $ 4,925856 $ 2,553,704
Classified as:
Current assets $ 2259585 $ 1241875 $ 171970 $ 3,673430 $ 2,553,704
Restricted assets 1,147,294 105,132 - 1,252,426 -
Totals $ 3406879 $ 1,347,007 $ 171970 $ 4925856 $ 2,553,704

Continued on next page
The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Statement of Cash Flow
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

(Continued)
Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Fund Non-Major Fund Activities
Water Biloxi Point Cadet Total Internal
And Port Development Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Corporation Funds Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (1,226,758) $ (1,424,477) $ (175,071) $ (2,826,306) $ (2,633)

Adjustments not affecting cash

Depreciation 1,911,944 1,406,555 - 3,318,499 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 229,583 4,114 - 233,697 -
Supplies inventory (857,128) - - (857,128) -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 160,742 20,275 - 181,017
Customer deposits 16,312 4,271 - 20,583 -
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities $ 234,695 $ 10,738  $ (175,071) $ 70,362 $ (2,633
Noncash investing, capital, and financing
activities:
Contributions of capital assets from
developers 545,537 - - -
Contributions of capital assets from
government 21,522,650 1,475,154 - -

The Accompanying Notes aag Integral Part of the Financial Statements.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2014
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(A)

(B)

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Biloxi, Mississippi (the City) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in thedJatate®f America
(GAAP) applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more
significant accounting policies of the City:

Reporting Entity

The City of Biloxi, Mississippi was incorporated on February 8, 1838 under the lahs of
State of Mississippi. The City operates under a M&muncil form of government and
provides the following services: public safety, (police, fire and civil defense), public works
(highways, streets, and sanitation), health and social services,regeltteation,
community development, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

The Cityds reporting entity applies al/l r
(GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary funds apply Financial AccouBtiaigdards Board
(FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. As required by GA&Be ttnancial
statements present the City of BilpXilississippi (the primary government) and its
components. The component wunit discussed
reporting entity because of the significance of its operation andcialarelationships with

the City.

Component Unit Disclosure

The criteria for including component units consist of identification of legally separate
organizations for which the elected officials of the City are financially accountable. This
criteria also includes identification of organizations for which the nature and significance

of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entityds financi al st atcanpment s t
uni t s, al though |l egally separate entitie
operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government.
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate ncatunthe
governmentsvide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
government. The City presents its component unit using the blending method.

(1) Blended Component Unit Point Cadet Development Corporation

The Point Cadet Delopment Corporation (PCDC), a nprofit corporation, is governed

by a three member board whose president is always the current Mayor of the City qf Biloxi
Mississippi Although it is legally separate from the City, PCDC is reported as part of the
primary government because its sole purpose is to finance, develop and manage City
owned property. PCDC provides services solely to the City of BiMigsissippiand is

reported as an enterprise fund using the blending method. PCDC does not issue separate
financial statements.
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(©)

(D)

(E)

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

(2) Biloxi Port Commission / Biloxi Port Fund

The Biloxi Port Commission (Commission) provides various services, including rental of
pleasure and commercial berths, industrial building rentals, maintenance and operation of
various harba@, wharves, piers, and channels, etc. The Commission had going concern
issues and on July 24, 2003, the City assumed all of its management responsibilities. The
Commi ssionsd0 assets and | iabilities were
year ending September 2004. Separate financialnséates are no longer available.

Related Organizations

The Biloxi Municipal Separate School District has been excluded from the reporting entity,
because it is an "other stamtbne government'. The sool district is a related
organization of, but not a component unit of the City of Bild4ississippi The governing
authorities of the City do select a majority of the school district's board, but do not have
ongoing financial accountability for thelsml district.

Joint Ventures and Jointly Governed Organizations

Additionally, during its evaluation of potential component units, management identified
one joint venture (Harrison County Utility Authority), and two jointly governed
organizations {te Harrison County Library System and the Gulfigitbxi Regional
Airport Authority).

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual
arrangement and that is owned, operated, or governed by two or more partiagpants
separate and specific activity subject to joint control, in which the participants retain (a) an
ongoing financial interest or (b) an ongoing financial responsibility. Generally, the purpose
of a joint venture is to pool resources and share the,casks and rewards of providing
goods or services to the venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general public
or specific service recipients.

A jointly governed organization is similar in nature to a joint venture in that they provide
goods and services to the citizenry of two or more governments. However, they do not
meet the definition of a joint venture because there is no ongoing significant financial
interest or responsibility by the participating governments

Basic Financid Statements

GovernmentWide and Fund Financial Statements

Theaccounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate
set of sekbalancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are tenbe sp

and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
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(F)

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

The governmentvide financial statements, including te&atement of ngtositionand the
statement of activitiegeport information on all of the ndrduciary activities of the City.

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the statements.
Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from busitygs activities, which rely extengly on

fees and charges for support. In the governmeaeé statement of ngiosition both the
governmental and businege activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by
column, and are reflected, on a full accrual, economic resourcg tdmsch incorporates
long-term assets and receivables as welbag-term debt and obligations.

The gatemenbf activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenuesect exp@sesare those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segmenrogram revenuesnclude 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function ornsmg and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported insteagea®ralrevenues

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the goverrmmtfinancial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major enterprise fuendsparrted

as separate columnstime fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The governmentvide financial statements are reported using é¢lsenomic resources
measurement focuasnd theaccrual basis of accountinggs are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants
and similaritems are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the proviér have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported usingutihent financial resources
measurement focuasnd themodified accrual basis ofcaounting Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to
accrual, i.e., measurable and available to pay liabilities of the current pekiallable

means collectible within the current periodsmon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of

the current period. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recognized when the
related fund liability is incred, if measurable, except for interest on loegn debt and

the longterm portion of accumulated compensated absences, which are recognized when
due.

Yearend accruals of ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, gaming taxes and franchise fees are
based upon agal collections of amounts remitted to the City within 60 days of year end.
Anticipated refunds of taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they
are measurable.
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(G)

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

Other licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and peraitiesjiscellaneous
revenues are recorded as revenues when they are received as they are generally not
measurable until actually received; however, charges for services which are measurable are
recorded as revenue in the period earned.

I n applyiceptibéefisosaccrual 0 concept to i
GASB Statement No. 33 the provider should recognize liabilities and expenses and the
recipient should recognize receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility
requirements inciding time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the
eligibility requirements are met should, under most circumstances, be reported as advances
by the provider and defeed revenue by the recipient.

The financial transactions of the Cityearecorded in the individual funds. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of-lsaléncing accounts that comprises its
assets liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures / expenses. The various
funds are reported by geric classification within the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds.
The City has electively added the General Bond and Interest Fund as a major fund. The
non-major funds are combed in a column in the fund financial statements andledtan

the combining section.

The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with a proprietary fund6s proi
revenues of the Water and Sewer fund and PCDC are charges to customers for sales and
services. The City insurance funds bill the other funds to cover insurance premiims a
claims. Operating expenses for the enterprise and internal service funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as notiogeravenues and
expenses.

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make use of estimates that affect reported amounts in the basic financial
statements. Actual ressltould differ from estimates.

Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those funds through which the City finances most of its municipal
services and are accounted for on the basis of a spending measurement focus. The focus on
governmental funds isn the determination of changes in financial position rather than
upon net income determination. The City's governmental funds are as follows:
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

General Fundi s the Citybés primary operating
financial resources of the igeral government except those required to be accounted for
in a separate fund.

General Capital Projects Fundi s used to account for t
Revenues are receivedrparily from the General Fund.

Debt ServiceFund is used to accourfor the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general loagrm debt principal, interest and related costs.

Other Non-Major Governmental Funds is a summarization of all of the nanajor
governmental funds including:

Special Revenue Funds
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources taderuse
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,
changes in fund neposition financial position, and cash flows, which is similar to
businessesThe following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the City:

Water and Sewer Fundaccounts for the activities of thei t y6s wat er a
system.

Biloxi Port Fundaccounts for the activitieadof t
channels.

Non-Major Proprietary Fund 1 Point Cadet Development Corporation (a blended
component unit) accotmfor the activities of PCDC.

Internal Service Funds

Like commercial enterprises, a governmental unit may decide to accept certain risk rather
than insure against those risks. As part of the City'sirsifance program, Internal
Service SeHlinsurance Reserve Funds have been established to account for the actual cost
of claims, reinsurance, and reserves. The City's Internal Service Funiisséeinthe risk

for workman's compensation, liability, automobile, casualty, health insurance and revenue
interruption due to catastrophic damage to the gaming industry. The Internal Service
Funds in turn charge the other City funds for their allocdtdeesof these net costs.

Non-Current Governmental Assets / Liabilities
GASB Statement No34 eliminates the presentation of Account Groups, but provides for
these records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the Governmental
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

Activities column in the governmewide Statement of Net Position.
Assets, Liabilities and NetPositionor Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City considers cash on hand, cash with fiscal agents, demand deposit, certificates of
deposit and bank repurchase egnents as cash and cash equivalents. In addition, each
fundos ecquityysi n ntvhasheéemteenteéd apaocash equivalent since cash
may be deposited or withdrawn from the pool at any tinteomi prior notice or penalty.

Investments
Investments are stated at fair value.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded in the Governmental, Budymssand Component

Unit Funds. Where appropriate, an associated allowance for doubtful accounts has been
established in the related fiin

Inventories and Prepaids

Governmental and Proprietary Fund inventories are valued at the lower of coshfirst
first-out) or market. Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The
cost is recorded aan expenditure at the tienindividualinventory items are consumed.
Prepaids consist of premiums paid on insurance policies extending beyond year end.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, including land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure
(i.e., roads, bridge street lighting and other similar items) and equipment are reported in
the applicable governmental and busiAgg® activities columns in the governmevitle
financial statements. The City's capitalization levels are as follows: purchased assets
cosing more than $500 are capitalized; building renovations are capitalized when their cost
exceeds 25% of the building's previously capitalized cost and if the repair extends the
building's estimated useful life; contributed capital assets are capitalidece@orded at

the estimated market value at the time of the contribution. Assets acquired using capital
lease obligations are treated in the same aas purchased capital assets.

Depreciation of capital assets is provided on the strdiightbasis oer the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40-50 years
Improvements 40-50 years
Infrastructure 20-60 years
Equipment 3-15 years
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associated employee
related costs when earned (or estimated to be earned) by the employee. For proprietary
funds and the governmewide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to
be used in the following year.

Post Employment Health Care Benefits
The City des not have costs associated with jgosployment benefits for retired
employees.

Interfund Transactions

Numerous interfund transactions occur during the normal course of operations of the City.
Disbursements made by one fund which are properly chaméalanother fund result in

the creation of interfund receivables and payables. This type of transaction is normally
settled by a caslpaymentbetween the funds. All other interfund transactions are
accounted for as trans&erTransfers between governnial or proprietary funds are thed

as part of the reconciliation to the government wide columnar presentation.

Advancesto Other Funds

Various funds have made shéetm advances to other funds. These advances, shown as
ADue Fr om Ot herorafyinmdtwe) bear ana interesteam® considered
"available spendable resouroesLongterm advances, if any, are those for which the
timing of repayment is uncertain: thus, an allocable portion of fund balance would be
reserved in governmental funds

Estimated Insurance Claims Payable

The City is self insured for gener al Il i ab
and employee health <cl ai ms. The operati:r
insurance internal service funds. Theraed liabilities for estimated claims represent an
estimate of the eventual loss on claims arising prior to-gedrincluding claimsncurred

and not yet reported.

Long-Term Debt

In the governmenwvide financial statements, and proprietary fund typeshm fund
financial statements, loAgrm debt and other loAgrm obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, busirigps activities, or proprietary

fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discatsemortized over the

life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are treated as period costs in the year of issue and are showr
as other financing uses.

In the fund financial stateemts, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as otheirfancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

Hi storically, t Hmem@Omsthgvé sotbbem material.i scount

Unearned Revenue andeferred Inflows of Resources

Unearned revenue is a liability that arises when resources are obtained before revenue
recognition criteria, other than time recognition criteria, have been satisfied. Resources
that are obtained before time recognition criteria have been edtiafe classified as
deferred inflows of resources.

Fund Equity

Beginning with fiscal year 2011, the City implemented, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) approved Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Defiroms (Statement). This statement provides more clearly
defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a
government s fund bal ances more transpare
related strength afpending constraints:

Nonspendable fund balancé amounts that are not in nonspendable form (such as
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balanc® amounts constrained to specific purposes by their
providers (such as grantotspndholders, and higher levels of government), through
constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Committed fund balanced amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City
itself, using its highest level of decisiomaking authority (i.e. € Council). To be
reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City
takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

Assigned fund balancé amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose.
Intent can be expressed by the City Council or by an official or body to which the City
Council delegates authority.

Unassigned fund balancé amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive
amounts are reported only in the general fund.

City Councl establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage
of an ordinance or resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of
the budget. A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a
designation or commitment of the fund (such as special incentives). Assigned fund balance
is established by City Council through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended
for specific purpose (such as the purchaseapiital assets, construction, desgrvice, or

for other purposes).
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the City considers restricted funds have been spent first. When
an expenditure is incurred for which comtbed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City Council has
provided otherwise in its comtment or assignment of actions.

Il . Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
A. Budgetary Data

The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
combined financial statements are as follows:

1. Prior to October 1 he Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget
for the fiscal year beginning October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Not later than September 15, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution.

4. The budgetary comparisons present budget figures at the legal level of control. The
City legally adopts annual budgets for all funds. The City Council formallytadbe
annual budget for the general fund with revenues segregated by source (ad valorem tax,
licenses and permits, intergovernmental, etéhe general fund expenditure budget is
set at the character level (current, capital outlay, debt service) for degartment
(function) with current expenditures further detailed at the object class level (personal
services, supplies, other services and charges, and contractual services).

For special revenue and debt service funds, the budgetsviemues are seip at the
source level and expenditures budgets are set at the total expenditure level by fund

type.

The budget for capital project funds is adopted at total fund type level with the revenue
budget set at the source level and expenditures set at theexpehditure level.
Proprietary fund budgets are adopted for the Water and Sewer Fund and for the Port
Fund with revenues delineated at the source level (total intergovernmental revenue and
total charges for services) and expenditure budgets delineatedabgcter (current,
capital outlay debt seice).

State statutes authorize the State Auditor to regulate the municipal budget process.
Expenditures must be defined to the minimum level prescribed by the State Auditor.
The State Auditor has set this &hat the purpose level. Municipalities are prohibited
from spending in excess of the lowest level adopted in the budget except for the capital
outlay, election expense and emergency warrants.
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For mal budgetary integrat i olby maragementeor i a c
expenditure control purposes. Management may transfer budget between expenditure
accounts within each character grouping of the expenditure accounts for each
department.

The Cityds budgets ar e ado @ideedulations ofatttec o r d
State Auditor and not on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Governmental
Accounting Principles. The budgets for revenues are on a cash hase/enue is
recognized if actually received within the yedudgeted expendituseare on the cash

basis with allowance for encumbrances for goods and services actually received prior to
yearend and liquidated (paid) within thirty days after yead. Accounting principles
applied in preparation of the budget comparison statemeifies fiom the generally
accepted accounting principles used in preparation of the fund financial statements.
These differences in the principles used results in timing differences in the recognition
of revenues and expenditures. Below is a reconciliaidghe General Fund Statement

of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget andi Axialglet

Basis to the General Fund column of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balan¢eGovernmental Funds:

General
Fund

Excess (defiency) of revenues and other sources

over expenditures and other uses, budgetary basis $( 2,306992)
Adjustments

To convert receivables ( 794,808)

To convert prepaids ( 567,671)

To convert liabilities ( 579609)
Totals, GAAP basis $(_4,249080)

B. Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds
For the year ended September 30, 20&Apenditures exceeded appropriations in the
nondepartmentafthe legal level of budgetary control) of the generaldfioy $43,786
This over expenditure asfunded by the generélindbalance

C. Deficit Fund Equity
There were no fuds with net equity in a deficit position.
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lll. Detail Notes- All Funds
A. Property and Gaming Tax Revenues

Property Tax

The City kvies a tax on real and personal property based on the assessed value of property
as compiled by the Harrison County Tax Assessor. The taxes on real and personal property
attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of January 1 of each year. nligeas o

and personal property are levied by the City Council at the first regular meeting in
September. Through an indexcal agreement, all of the property taxes of the City of
Biloxi, Mississippiare collected by the Harrison County Tax Collector amditted as tax
settlements (less an appropriate collection fee) to the City on a monthly basis. Taxes for
the Biloxi Municipal Separate School District are also billed and collected by the county
and remitted to the schools through the City.

In accordancevith the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, the City Council may levy
taxes in any amount for general revenue purposes and general improvements. However,
taxes collected for any one year may not exceed one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the
taxes ollected for the prior assessment year. For purposes of the computation, taxes
collected in the current year resulting from property added to the tax assessment roll are
excluded from the computation. In addition, the City Council may levy additiored fax

specific purposes, such as culture and recreation, as authorized by law.

The tax levies for the calendar years 20013 and 2014taxes collected ithe fiscal
years ending 9/30/1®/30/4, and 9/30/3 are as follows:

9/30'15 9/30/14 9/30/13
Millage Millage Millage

City Funds
General Fud 18.65 17.15 17.15
Special revenue funds:

Disability and Relief (Pension) Funds 2.50 2.50 2.50
Debt Service Funds 7.70 9.20 9.20
Solid waste collection and disposal 1.25 1.25 1.25
Total City administered funds 30.10 30.10 30.10

School Funds
District maintenance 37.96 36.82 35.16
School debt 541 6.23 7.89
Total School administered funds 4337 43.05 43.05
Total levy 7347 73.15 73.15
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Gaming Revenue

In 1992, the citizens of Harrison County voted to allow dockside casino gaming as defined
by the Mississippi Gaming Control Act of 1990. In August of 1992, the first casino opened
at Biloxi's Point Cadet del@ment. As of September 30, 201#here weresevencasinos
operating within the City of BiloxiMississippi Gaming activities are taxed in a variety of
ways. The State of Mississippi levies a sliding scale tax on gross gaming revenue, of
which Harrism County and the City of BiloxiMississippireceive .4 to .8 percent. This

tax is divided 73.4% to the County, and 26.6% to the City of Bilbkssissippi The
allocation is based upon the population demographics of the last official census. In
addition to the State tax, the City of BiloxMississippi, through local ordinance in
accordance with state law, levies an additional 3.2% tax on gross gaming revenues. This
tax is distributed as follows: 60% to the General Fund, (20% of which is designated fo
public safety); 20% to the Biloxi Public Schools; 10% to Harrison County for public safety;
and 10% to Harrison County Schools. In addition to the taxes on gross gaming revenue,
the State, City and County annually receive licensing fees and permitedintasino for

each gaming device. The following is an analysis of the gaming revenues reported in the
General Fund:

Local option 3.2% tax $15,615077
Local share of state tax 1,521,934
Gaming licenses and permits 1668315

Total gaming revenues

$18,805326

. Deposits and Investments

The City deposits funds in financial institens selected by the City Cocihin accordance

with state statutes. Furthermore, the City invests excess funds in various investment
instruments that are alled by statutes. Various restrictions on deposits and investments
are imposed by statutes. Deposits and investments are summarized below.

Depositsi

Deposits consist of cash amounts in demand accounts and certificates of deposit. The
collateral forpudl ¢ ent i ti esd® deposits in financi al
State Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is
governed by Section 27055 Mi s s . Code Ann. (1972). U

funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial
institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against
those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institutioryrgiexs pledged by that
institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not
covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. By using this multiple financial

i nstitution <col | atseepaits at Pepterhber 3@ LALdl ot thete h e  (
credit r i slksuredat ccellgteralized wotli sedurities held by the entity or by its
agent i n t heDeposits ard syninarizedasfalons:

41



City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements

(Continued)
Reported Bank
Amount Balance
Cash $ 29,183908 $ 32389137
Certificates of deposit 1,281,838 1,281,838
Total deposits $ 30465746 $ 33670975

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flows of Proprietary Funds include all cash accounts
and certificates of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk T Deposits

Custodi al credit risk is the risk that in
may not be returned to it. The City does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.
However, state law permits the Missigsip St ate Treasurer 6s of fi
behalf of the City. Deposits above FDIC coverage are collateralized by the pledging
financi al i nstitutionsd trust depart ment
Treasurer on behalf of the CtyBy si gned agreement the Mis
office is acting on behalf of the City.

Investments
The City is allowed, by statute, to invest excess funds in any bonds or other direct
obligations of the United States of America or the State o§isEgpi, or of any county or
municipality of this state, when such county or municipal bonds have been properly
approved. At September 30, 2Q0i#vestments consisted of the following:
Reported Fair
Amount Value
|l nvest ments held by the City or the City.
safekeeping agent, anelgistered in the
name of the City:
Investments not categorized:
Money Market Mutual Funds $ 32597054 $ 32597054

Interest Rate Risk. This is the risk that changes in market intetest will adversely

affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment,
the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The City does
not have a formal investment policy that iisninvestment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. Most of
the Cityds investments are in Money Mark
maturity of less than one year.
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Concentrabn of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest
I n any one issuer. More than 5 percent
Mut ual Funds. These are 100%, of the Cit)

Credit Risk. Generallygredit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will

not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by assignment of

a rating by a nationally recognized rating organization. U.S. Government securities or
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit
ri sk exposur e. Al l of the Cityds i nvest me

. Receivables

The Statement of Net Position of the City of BiloXississippiincludes thefollowing

receivables aBeptember 30, 2014

Taxes receivable:

Utility franchise taxes $ 897058
Sales taxes 1,869,081
Ad valorem taxes 87,487
Gaming taxes and fees 3,397,660
Total taxes receivable $ 6,251286
Customer accounts receivable:
Garbage fees $ 278679
Water and sewer utility charges (billed) 1,334,822
Port beth rentals 111,468
Lessallowance for doubtful accounts (554500
Customer accounts receivable earned but not billed 610561
Total customer accounts receivable, net $ 1,781,030
Grants receivable:
Federal and state grants $_14,683055
Other receivables:
Special assessments $ 106916
Lessallowance for doubtful accotm ( 99,217
Liquor privilege tax 76,350
Due from county for debt service 1,200,000
Other 1,111,958
Total other receivables $  2,396007
. Prepaids
Prepaids at September 30, 2@bsist of the following:
Prepaid insurance premiums $ 1038687
Total prepaids $_1,038687

43



E.

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements

(Continued)
Interfund Receivables and Payables
Due From Due to
Other Other
Individual Interfund Balanceat September 30, 2@1 Funds Funds
General Fund
General Capital Projecte fundproject cos $ 76082 $ -
Claims contingency fund for claims and expenses - 1,946802
Total General Fund 76,082 1,946802
General Capital Projects Fund:
General Fundo fundproject costs - 76,082
2014 General Obligation Bond Furid fund project costs 359,161 -
2014 SpecialObligation Bond Serie® fund project costs 1,096,089 -
Debt Service Funtb fundproject costs - 8,925819
Water and Sewer Fund fundproject costs - 4,303,091
Biloxi Port Fundto fund project costs 17,623,052 -
Total General Capital Projects Fund 19,078,302 13,304,992
Debt Servte Fund
2014 General Obligation Bond Fufat interest expenses 17,972
General Capital ProjecEundto fundproject costs 8,925,819 -
Total Debt Service Fund 8,925819 17,972
2014General ObligatioBond Fund
Debt Service Funtbr interest expenses 17,972 -
GeneralCapital Projects Funub fund project costs - 359,161
Total 2014 TIF Capital Projects Bond Fund 17,972 359161
2014Special Obligation Bond Series
General Capital Projects Futmifundproject costs - 1,096,089
Total 2014 Special Obligation Bond Series - 1,096,089
Enterprise Fund:
Water and Sewer Fund for claims and expsnse - 117,450
Water and Sewer Fund to General Capital Projects Fund 4303091 -
Biloxi Port Fund for claims and expenses - 72,050
Biloxi Port Fundto General Capital Projects Fund - 17,623,052
Total Enterprise Fund 4,303,091 17812552
Internal Service Selinsurance:
Claims Contingency Fund from General
Fund forclaims and expenses 1,946802 -
Claims Contingency Fund from Water
and Sewer Fund for claims and expenses 117450 -
Claims Contingency Fund from Biloxi
Port Fund for claims and expenses 72,050 -
Total Internal Service Selhsurance 2,136302 -
Totals $_ 34537568 $_ 34537568
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The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended September 30y2€Aas follows:

Transfers From Transfers Into
General
Capital Water &
Projects Sewer
Fund Fund Total
General Fund $ 806,303 $ 22,619 $ 828,922

General Capital Projects Fund

21,011,900 21,011,900

2014 General Obligation Bond Fund 1,576,537 - 1,576,537
Tax Increment Junior Lien

Limited Obligation Bond Series 2014 1,932,682 - 1,932,682
2014 Special Obligation Bond Series 4,625,432 - 4,625,432
Nonmajor governmental funds

2012 GO Capital Projects Bond Fund 99,876 - 99,876

2002 TIF Capital Projects Bond Fund 40,758 - 40,758

Total nonmajor governmental funds 140,634 - 140,634

Total governmental funds 9,081,588 21,034,519 30,116,107
Biloxi Port Fund 219,920 - 219,920
Totals $9,301,508 $21,034,519 $30,336,027

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with the collection authorization to the
debt service fund as debt service pipat and interest payments become due, 2) move restricted
amounts from borrowings to the debt service fund to establish mandatory reserve accounts, 3)
move unrestricted general fund revenues to finance various programs that the City must account
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as
subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs.

During the year ended September 30,2l transfers to the General Capital Projects Fund
were to provide fundig for current or future capital projects. Transfers from the General Capital
Projects Fund to the proprietary funds were for completed capital projects to be utilized by each
individual proprietary fund. Transfers from the Internal Service Furtdegdseneal Fund were

made to spport the fund balance for the General Fun@nsfers from the General Fund to the
Water & Sewer Fund were fixed assets for use by that fund.
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Capital Asset Activity

Capital assets activity for year ended September 3@, 284as follows:

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2013 Increases Decreases 2014
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 46,304,367 $ 589,970 $ - $ 46,894,337
Construction in progress 25,516,606 29,643,174 11,023,064 44,136,716
Total capital assets not being depreciated 71,820,973 30,233,144 11,023,064 91,031,053
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 69,870,088 7,497,092 - 77,367,180
Improvements other than buildings 23,042,841 1,177,170 - 24,220,011
Machinery and equipment 38,927,548 1,178,801 905,883 39,200,466
Infrastructure - streets and drainage 160,770,157 3,130,915 - 163,901,072
Total capital assets being depreciated 292,610,634 12,983,978 905,883 304,688,729
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 10,831,036 2,417,295 - 13,248,331
Improvements other than buildings 2,673,874 1,267,299 - 3,941,173
Machinery and equipment 30,196,150 2,112,977 801,838 31,507,289
Infrastructure - streets and drainage 51,013,585 3,043,524 - 54,057,109
Total accumulated depreciation 94,714,645 8,841,095 801,838 102,753,902
Net capital assets being depreciated 197,895,989 4,142,883 104,045 201,934,827
Net governmental activities assets $ 269,716,962 $ 34,376,027 $ 11,127,109 $ 292,965,880
Business type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 829,243 $ - % -8 829,243
Construction in progress 58,381,570 22,997,805 12,931,529 68,447,846
Total capital assets not being depreciated 59,210,813 22,997,805 12,931,529 69,277,089
Capital assets being depreciated
Equipment 5,573,401 58,699 234,082 5,398,018
Water and sewer system 77,975,338 7,480,382 - 85,455,720
Port buildings & improvements 40,514,242 5,996,684 - 46,510,926
Total capital assets being depreciated 124,062,981 13,535,765 234,082 137,364,664
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment 3,211,964 273,532 182,132 3,303,364
Water and sewer system 41,131,546 1,655,064 - 42,786,610
Port buildings and improvements 8,624,344 1,389,903 - 10,014,247
Total accumulated depreciation 52,967,854 3,318,499 182,132 56,104,221
Net capital assets being depreciated 71,095,127 10,217,266 51,950 81,260,443
Net business type activities assets $ 130,305,940 $ 33,215071 $ 12983479 $ 150,537,532
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 211,125
Community development 637,222
Cultural affairs 517,957
Parks and recreation 2,104309
Public safety 1,995706
Public works 331,252
Infrastiucture 3,043,524
Total depreciation expengeggovernmental activities $_ 8841095
Businesgype activities
Water and sewer $ 1,911,944
Port Fund 1,406555
Total depreciation expengebusinesgype activities $_ 3,318499

Leased assets
The City is the lessor of certain real property in both its governmental and enterprise funds.
The following is a summary of this leased property:

Govern Business

Mental Type

Activities Activities Total
Cost $ 2,032642 $48171,814 $50,204456
Accumulated depreciation - (10197,099 (10,197,098
Carrying amout $ 2032642 $37,974716 $40,007,358
Depreciation expense $ - $ 1,406555 $ 1,406555

. Leases

Capital Leases

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 the City entered into a capital lease with
Hancock Bank to finance a lighting project. The amount financed was $438,782 at the
fixed, simple interest rate of 4. %bfor seven years. Title to the equipment is held in the
name of the City and Hancock Bank as lien holder. The lease terms include a non
appropriation clause; however, the possibility of 4appropriation is remote. The lease
does not include any contiegt or purchase option payments or penalties. There are no
restrictions on the Cityds use of the 1lig
The City has accounted for the lease as a financing arrangement.
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During the fiscal year ended Septeani30, 2012 the City entered into three capital leases
The total purchase
amount financed was $603,200 at the fixed, simple interest rate of 1.99% for five years.
Title to the equipment iseid in the name of the City and Hancock Bank as lien holder.

with Hancock Bank to finance the purchase of various equipment.

The lease terms include a nappropriation clause; however, the possibility of non

appropriation is remote. The lease does not include any contingent or purchase option
payments or penaltesSl her e are no restrictions on
City insures the equipment. The City has accounted for the lease as a financing

arrangement.

The City will make the following payments of principal and interest:

Fiscal Year
Ended
September 30 Principal Interest Total
2015 $132851 $ 4,920 $ 137771
2016 123261 2,453 125714

$256112 $ 7,373 $ 263485

Assetsacquired through capital leases are:

Govern Business
mental Type
Asset Activities Activities
Fire Truk $ 897,699 $ -
Lighting 438,782 -
Breathing Apparatus 274,275 -
Radio Equipment 208,073 -
Four (4) 2012 Chevy Tahoes 120852 -
$ 1939681 $ -
Future minimum lease payments and the net present value of the lease payments are:
Govern Business
mental Type
Year Ended September 30 Activities Activities
2015 $ 137771 % -
2016 125,714 -
Total minimum lease payments 263,485 -
Less: amount representing interest (7,373 -

Present value of minimum lease payment$ 256,112 $ -
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H. Long-Term Debt
The following is asummaryof bond and other lonterm debt transactions of the City for
the year ended $eember 302014:
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
10/01/13 Additions _ Deletions 9/30/14 One Year

Governmental activities
General Obligation Bonds

and Notes $ 15,080,000% 35,000,000% 2,290000 $47,790000 $ 2,195000
Limited Obligation Bonds 36,502,925 1,995,000 2452428 36,045497 2512754
Capital leases 444,859 - 188747 256,112 132851

Compensated absences 7,699,448 _ 2,057,935 1606468 _ 8,150915 _ 2,037,729
Total governmental
activities $59,727,232$ 39052935 $ 6,537,643 $ 92242524 $ 6,878334

Businesstype Activities
Water and Sewer, pollution

control loans $ 3,528,580% 169579 $ 223972 $ 3,474187 $ 229759
Water and Sewer, drinking
water improvement loans 1,122,004 - 48,009 1,073995 48953
Limited tax port bonds 1,240,000 - 150000  1,090000 155000
Compensated absences 307,516 158191 110989 354,718 88,680
Total businessype
activities $ 6,198,100% 327770 $ 532970 $ 5992900 $ 522392

Bonds, notes, and other lotbgrm debt payable at September 30,£2ak comprised of the
following individual issues:

Amount
Governmental Activities Original Range of Outstandig
General Obligation Bonds and Notes: Issue Interest Rates  9/30/14

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, series 2011,

due in annual installments of $380,000 to

$1,240,000 through 12/1/2022 9,350,0002.00%2.625%% 7,420,000
General Obligation Bonds, series 2012, due in annual

installments of $35,000 to $505,000 through

4/1/2027 6,000,000 2.00%2.40% 5,370,000
General Obligatin Bonds series 204, due in annual

installments of $55000to0 $1,140,000 through

1/1/2029 14,000,000 3.00%-4.00% 14,00Q000
Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation

Bonds, series 2014lue in annual installments of

$765000to $1,590,000 througtB/1/2034 21,000,000 3.50%-4.75% 21,000000
Total General Obligtion Bonds $ 47790000
(Continued)
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Amount
Original Range of  Outstanding
Limited Obligation Bonds and Notes: Issue Interest Rates _ 9/30A4

Mississippi Development Bank promissory note, due in

monthly installments of $58,126 plus interest through

2/28/2015, monthly installments of $41,459 plus

interest hrough 3/30/2018 and then monthly

installments of $22,642 plus interest through

1/31/2019. Interest is based upon The Bond Market TBMA plus

Association (TBMA) index plus 105 basis points.  $10,000,000 1.05% $ 2069730
Mississippi Development Association loan, due in annual

installments of $33®8, through 12/31/2022, secured

by City sales tax, payable by Harrison County

Development Commission 500,000 3.00% 228,083
Tax Increment Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds,

series 2006 A, due in annual installments of

$1,420,000 to $2,700,000 through 11/1/2027 31,685,000 4.50%5.00% 28,700,000
Mississippi Deelopment Bank promissory note, due in

monthly installments of $24,618 plus interest through

1/31/2025. Interest rate is variable. 4,500,000 1.5%2.5% 3,052,684
Tax Incremenfunior LearLimited Obligation Bonds,

series 2@4, due in annual installments of $120,000 to

$145,000 throught/15/2029 1,995,000 4.07% 1,995,000
Total Limited Obligation Bonds and Notes $_ 36045497

Other General Londerm Debt:
Hancock Bank capital lease, amortized in
monthly installments of $6,028 through
11/29/2014 $ 438,782 4.15% $ 11,994
Hancock Bank capital lease, amortized in
annual installments of $1254 through

8/1/2016 603,200 1.99% 244118
Total Other General LoRrgierm Debt 256112
Compensated absences 8,150915
Total governmental lorterm debt $ 92242524

Business Type Activities
Water and Sewer Fund
State of Mississippi Pollution Control Loans,
due in varying installments through 1/15/803 $9480015 1.75%4.5% $ 3474187
State of Mississippi Drinking Water Improvement
Loans, due imonthlyinstallmentsof $5,788through
2/15/2033 1,133,861 1.95% 1,073995
Biloxi Port Fund
Limited Tax Port Bonds, series 1999 due in annual
installments of $15,000 to $210,000 through

12/1/2019 2,500,000 5.80%-6.00% 1,090000
Total bsinesstype activities bonds and notes 5,638182
Compensated absences 354718
Total businessype activities longerm debt $ _ 5992900
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The annual requirements to pay principal and interest enbtinds, notes and loans
outstanding at September 30, 20dllow and include interest on the variable rate debt.

BusinessType Activities

Governmental Activitie Port Bonds & Wate
Year Ende General Obligatio Limited Obligatior and Sewer Nott
September 3 Principa Interes Principa Interes Principa Interes
201t $ 2,195000 $ 2,328,561 $ 2,512,75 $ 1,471,82 $ 433,71: $ 144,91
201¢ 3,015,001 1,562,26' 2,510,25! 1,397,45 453,64 129,93!
2017 3,115,00! 1,475,68. 2,596,07! 1,303,32 475,06 114,49:
201¢ 3,215,001 1,386,26! 2,582,79 1,205,141 458,50: 96,91¢
201¢ 3,310,001 1,294,09 2,360,80! 1,105,31 468,01! 79,77¢
2020202 13,055,001 5,249,07 12,629,33 4,061,79. 1,376,86: 236,11¢
2025202¢ 12,620,00 2,998,69 10,853,47. 1,277,23i 1,144,03 128,00¢
2030-203¢ 7,265,00i 891,20: - - 814,96( 26,66«
2035203¢ - - - - 13,38: 16€

Totals $ 47,790,00 $ 17,185,85 $ 36,045,49 $ 11,822,09 $ 5,638,18 $ 956,99

The City's legal debt limit for general obligation bonds is as follows:

Assessed valuations 2B{inside the City):

Real property $ 43358414
Persmal property 86,086,954
Public utility 38,561,283
Autos and mobile homes, estimated 44272817
Total assessed valuations $_ 602505,198
Fifteen percent (15%) of total assessed valuation $ 90,375780
Lessoutstanding general issues at 9/30/1 47,790000
Legal debt margin $_ 42585780
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The City Council annually adopts a resolution providing for the amount of property tax
millage necessary to be levied and collected by the City in the next fiscal year for the
payment during suclyear of principal and interest on all outstanding general obligation
bonds of the City. The millage rate for the year ended September 30 vwAEL.70 mills

or $7.70 per $1,000 of assessed value.

Other general longerm debt of the Enterprise Funds #1,548182 of pollution
control/state revolving loans and drinking water improvement loans from the State of
Mississippi. The State Tax Commission, in accordance with a signed agreement with the
City of Biloxi, Mississippiis currently deducting $30,31@eh month from the sales tax
remittances to the City to apply as payments on these loans.

The City has authorized the issuance of limited tax port bonds for the purpose of making
improvements to property belonging to the Biloxi Port Fund (previously tliBrort
Commission). The bonds are secured by an irrevocable pledge of the avails of a direct and
continuing one (1) mill ad valorem tax to be levied by Harrison County, Mississippi. The
bonds are payable solely from the avails of the Harrison Cdartievy. At September

30, 204, the aggregate, outstanding principal amount of the issueslyeg9$H00.

Retirement Plans

The City of Biloxi, Mississippiparticipates in two retirement system administered by the
Public Empl oyees O Rsassippr(RERSE)N Both Systenmsem definfed M
benefit plans and include a multiemployer, esisaring pension plan and an agent rulti
employer pension plan as described below:

1. Firemen's and Policemen's Disability and Relief Plan and Employee's Disability
and Relief Plan

All firemen and policemen hired prior to March 1, 1976, are covered by the Firemen's and
Policemen's Disability and Relief Plan. All other City employees employed prior to
February 5, 1975, are covered by the Employees' Disability andfHdn. Both the
Firemends and the Policemends Disability
and Relief Plan are agent multigenployer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Public Employees Retirement System of Mississippi.

Underthe provisions of Chapter No. 511 of the General Laws of the State of Mississippi,
1987, effective October 1, 1987, the administrative responsibility for these retirement
systems was assigned to the Mississippi Municipal Retirement System, a progran of th
Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi. The City is authorized by law to
require membership contributions from 1% to a maximum of 10% of the total
compensation of each participating employee. City employee contributions are 9%. PERS
issuesa publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
suppl ementary i nformation for the Municip
Plans. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement
System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 3BQ0A. or by calling
(601)3593589 or 80444PERS. Based upon annual actuarial data provided by PERS,
the City levies a tax millage sufficient to fund the current obligations for retirement
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payments and also provide the recommended amount to reduce the balance of the unfunded
employer liability. For the year ended September 304204 combined millage waa5
mills. The City has no control over the administration of the plans.

The City isrequired by statute to set a tax levy sufficient to fund the annual required
contribution. The plan administrator, the Mississippi Public Employees Retirement
System, provides actuarial data for the two plans combined. The City accounts for these
closedplans as a single, agent multj@mployer defined benefit plan.

Current membership in the City's Mississippi Municipal Retirement Systeamiposed of
the following

Active members -
Retirees and beneficiaries 116
Total 116

Participatingemployees who retire, regardless of age, with at least 20 years of credited

service are entitled to an annual retirement allowance, payable monthly in an amount equal
to 50% of their average monthly compensation plus an additional 1.7% for each year of
credited service in excess of 20 years with a maximum of 66 2/3% of average monthly

compensation. Average monthly compensation is the average for the last 6 months of
service. Certain death and disability benefits are also provided by these plans which are
governed by State statute and City ordinances.

The Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
(based onhe valuation as of June 30, 2014

Normal $ -
Accrued liability 1,430885
Total $ 1,430885
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Additional information as of June 30, 2Dfbllows.

Valuation date 6/30/2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level dollar closed
Remaining amortization period 20 years

Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:

5-year smoothed market

Investment rate of return* 8.00%
Projected salary imeases** 4.507 6.00%
* Includes price inflation at 3.50%
** Includes wage inflation at 4.25%

Cost of living adjustments

3% per year, not to exceed 64.4%, for each
year of retirement after 6/30/2000, with
compounding after the member turns age 55,
in addition to any previously granted
COLAs.

During the year ended September 30,£0dmployer contributions totalingl$47,149
were made in accordance with contribution requirements determined by an actuarial

valuation of the system as &dine30, 20X4.
Schedule of employer contributions:

Adjustment to
Remove

Annual Amortization of
Fiscal Year Required Interestonth Past Under/Ovel Annual Pensiol Employer Pensio Change in the NPO at Year
Ended Contribution NPO Contribution Cost Contribution  Percentage NPO End
9/30/2012 1,329,064 (810,223) (958,617) 1,477,458 1,336,298 100.54% 141,160 (9,986,631
9/30/2013 1,415,714 (798,931) (961,039) 1,577,822 1,351,736 95.48% 226,086 (9,760,545
9/30/2014 1,463,984 (780,844) (975,884) 1,659,024 1,347,150 92.02% 311,874 (9,448,671
The Cityos negative Net Pension Qlbwas gat i
$9,448671
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits $ 23622819
Active members -
Vested terminatethembers not yet receiving benefits -
Total actuarial accrued liability 23622819
Less: Actuarial value of assets 9,328323
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $_ 14294496

During the year endedune30, 2014 the Ran experienced a net change 6$3763)in
the AAL. Additional information may be found in Required Supplementary Information,

page6s.
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The funded status of the Plan asJohe30, 204, the most recent actuarial valuation date is as
follows:
(6)

(2 Unfunded
Actuarial AAL as a
D) Accrued 3) % (5) Percentage
Actuarial Liability Percent  Unfunded Annual of Covered
Plan Value of (AAL) Funded AAL Covered Payroll
Year Ended Assets Entry Age Q) /(2) (2)- (1) Payroll (4) /1 (5)
6/30/14 9,328 23,623 39.5 14,295 - N/A

2. Public Empl oyees0 RediBeneféeReesionPlaBy st em Def i

All full -time City employees hired after June 30, 1987, participate in the Public Employees’
Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Other City employees hired prior to July 1,
1987 may elect to participate in the retirementesystinder an option offered by PERS.

Plan Description: The City of BiloxiMississippicontributes to the Public Employees’
Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS), a @bstring multipleemployer defined
benefit pension plan. PERS provides retiremerdt disability benefits, annual cest-

living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit
provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State of
Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly add financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That information may be
obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429
Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 3920005 or by calling/601) 3593589 or 1800444

PERS.

Funding Policy: PERS' members are required to contria0f@o of their annual covered
salary and City of Biloxi is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
current rate is 15.75% of annual covepayroll. The contribution requirements of PERS
members are established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature.
The City of Biloxi, Mississipp®s contributions to PERS for the years ending September 30,
2014, 2013, and 202 were $4,250441, $3,912,605and $3,605,496, respectively. These
amounts were 100% of the required contributions.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City also offers to its employees voluntary participation in a deferred compensation
plan created in accordancethvinternal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, Group
Flexible Fund Retirement Contracts, administered by Nationwide Retirement Solutions,
Inc., permits employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. All plan assets
are held in trust o Nationwide for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries and not subject to the cl ai |
assets and liabilities for the compensation deferred by plan participants is not refiected i
the Citybés financi al stat ement g .contriddtiomsi n g
by participants employed by the City totale€sD$,068
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J. Community Development Block Grant Program

Status of Grants

The City of Biloxi, Mississippiis awarded arentittement grant every year by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development Community Block Grant Program. The
following represents the status of the award of giamds as of September 30, 2014

Drawn Drawn

Prior to During

FYE FYE

Award 9/30/14 9/30/14 Balance

CDBG B-12-MC-28-0001 $ 391,232 $ 168,246 $ 222,986 $ -
CDBG B-13-MC-28-0001 377,951 - 150,349 227,602
CDBG B-14-MC-28-0001 415068 - - 415068
Totals $ 1184251 $ 168246 $ 373335 $ 642670

Waterfront Development

Through the use of certain Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) grants
and loans, the City has acquired and developed property commonly known as the Point
Cadet Waterfrot Development Project. These federal grants and loans contain restrictions
which require that 6% of the income (such as rents), generated by these properties, be
restricted as to use for CDBG eligible activities only.

The City of Biloxi, Mississippihasne got i at ed t hree | eases witt
t he AGol den & thgRomttCadetaNaterfromtdevelopment. A portion of the
lease revenues are considered program income under the CDBG and HUD Section 108
loan programs, and are restritti® use for such eligible purposes. The initial lease (casino
lease), dated August 1, 1992, calls for an initial term of seven (7) years with seven
additional five (5) year renewal options. Minimum annual rentals are $500,000. Minimum
annual rentals foeach renewal option period are adjusted by the Consumer Price Index. In
addition to the minimum annual rentals, the lease calls for an additional annual amount
equal to three percent (3%) of the tenant's gross annual revenues in excess of $25,000,000.

Another lease (hotel lease), dated April 13, 1994, calls for an initial term of tfreaty

(25) years with six additional ten (10) year renewal options and a final option period with a
termination date of December 31, 2085. Minimum annual rentals bég94000 and

are adjusted every five years by reference to the Consumer Price Index. In addition to the
minimum annual rentals, the lease calls for an additional amount equal to four percent (4%)
of the tenantds gross revenues.

A third lease (podium kese), dated August 15, 2002, calls for an initial term of forty (40)
years (although the tenant has the right to terminate on July 31, 2009, and on every fifth
anniversary of that date), with one additional twelntg (25) year renewal option. The

final period would terminate on August 14, 2067. Minimum rent is computed as a function

of the total annual minimum and percentage rent from the casino lease and hotel lease.
When coupled with four percent ( 4 %) of t|
covered by the podium lease, the annual guaranteed rent is $2,733,000 ghisdofi¢3)
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of all scheduled contingent increases. The guaranteed rent is to be adjusted every five years
by reference to the Consumer Price Index.

Mortgage Loans Receivable

Under the CDBG Program, the City of BiloxMississippimakes installment mortgage
loans to eligible parties. These loans are secured by a deed of trust and have varying
interest rates and terms.

Mortgage loans receivable at September 30426dnsisted bthe following:

Nixon Street home acquisition mortgages $ 2,028
Revolving Loan Program 10,309
Total deferred mortgage loans receivable $_ 12337

. Self-Insured Risk, Claims and Other Contingencies

As described in Note 1 to the financial stagens, the City has established a-se$urance

risk retention program administered through an internal service fund. The following is a
summary of the City's insurance coverage andissifred risk retention (SIR):

Property damagefor windstorm and hail
5% subject to a

minimum of
Per occurrence deductible (SIR) $1,000,000
Specific excess coverage in force 90,633643
Property damage for all otherperils
Per occurrence deductible (SIR) 100,000
Specific excess coverage in force 90,633,643
Workers' compensation
Per occurrence deductitfier police, firefighters,
first responder&SIR) 750,000
Per occurrence deductible for all other employees (SIR) 500,000
Specific excess coverage in force Statutory
General and other liability coverage
Per occurrence deductible (SIR) $ 50,000
Specific excess coverage in force 1,000,000
Annual aggregate coverage to:
Generaliability 900,000
Law enforcement liability 900,000
Automobile liability 900,000
Health
Per individual deductible (SIR) 125000
Annual aggregate risk of loss through deductibles 7,465093
Specific excess coverage in force 1,000,000
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The following is a summary of the City's seiburane reserves at September 30, 2014

Property,
Liability &
Employee Wor ker so
Medical Compen
Claims sation Total
Total estimated liability ad reserves
October 1, 203 $ 2,386,019 $ 3,054,249 $ 5,440,268
Claims incurred and changes in estimates 5,224,479 918937 6,143416
Claims paid (6,040,147} (_ 613,18 (6,653,357
Total estimated liability and reservies
September 30, 2@1 $ 1570327 $ 3,360,000 $ 4,930327
Claims incurred and changes in estimates 5,403856 1,608613 7,012469
Claims paid (6,258386) (_1,072901) (_7,331,287)
Total estimated liability and reservies
September 3®015 $ 715797 $ 3895712 $ 4,611,509

The City's reserves, including estimates for claims incurred but not reported, are developed
by the Ciy's thirdparty claims administrator. Administrative officials have reviewed the
reserve estimates and consider them fairly stated. Additionally, the liability has been
actuarially evaluated and found to be reasonable.

The City is involved in various béer legal matters arising during the normal course of
business activities. Management, after consulting legal counsel, is of the opinion that the
ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of tke City.

. Related Party Commitments

Joint Venture

The City of Biloxi, Mississippiis a member of the Harrison County Utility Authority
(Authority) which was established by an act of the Mississippi Legislature to provide for
adequate wastewater treatrhand solid waste disposal services to the citizens of Harrison
County, Mississippi. The governing board is comprised of one mefm each of the
cities andtwo members from each of the counties who are members of the Authority.
Through a fiftyyear ontract, the City of Biloxi Mississippiis obligated to pay monthly,

its prorata share of all operating, administrative, and capital costs of the Authority.
Additionally, the City is jointly and severally liable for all of the liabilities of the Auttyori

The Authority is classified as a joint venture between the City of Bildigsissippiand

the other members. The following is a synopsis of the Authority's financial statements as
of and for the year ended September 3042@lcomplete copy of whicis on file at the
administrative offices of the Authority.
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Harrison County Utility Authority Synopsis
Statement of Net Position
Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

Assets

Current assets

Restricted assets

Property, plant and equipment

Total assets
Deferred outflow of resources

Liabilities & Net Position

Liabilities

Current, unrestricted

Current, restricted

Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Net position
Total liabilities and neposition

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Non-operating revenues (expenses

Changes in net position

$ 8031944
28,629163
283300419
319961,526

19505379

$ 6655328
15247921
123464554
145367,803

194099102

$_339466905

$ 19035621
( 19,443106)
(8591599

12,395705

$__ 3396622

59



City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Notes to the Fhancial Statements
(Continued)

The following financial information concerning transactions with the Authority have been
included in the City of BiloxiMississipps financial statementsder the following
captions:

General Fund
Statement of net position;
Accounts payable $ 112,922

Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance:
Public works expenditures:
Other services and charges (solid waste charges) $ 1,558006

Water and Sewe Enterprise Fund
Statement of net position:
Accountsreceivable $ 693574

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:
Operating expenses:
Contracted services (wastewater treatment) $ 8.886599

Jointly Governed Organizations

Harrison County Library System i On May 18, 1976, the City entered into an agreement
with the Board of Trustees of the Biloxi Public Library, the City of Gulfplftississippi,

the Board of Supervisors of Harrison Countjississippi,the Board of Trustees of the
Gulfport-Harrison County Library, the City of Pass Christilhssissippi,and the Board of
Trustees of the Pass Christian Public Library to mutually cooperate in securing a more
economical public library system ttugh combined resources, interests, materials and
facilities to be known as the Harrison County Library System. There are no specific
monetary terms in the agreement and the City of Bilbkssissippihas no equity interest

in the organization. Howeveg budget is approved every year by the County Library
Board, which stipulates the amount of funds needed from the participating municipalities
and various other funding sources. The City of Bildississippicontributed $95000

for the year ended Seghber 30, 204 The amount budgeted for the City of Bilpxi
Mississippifor the fisal year ended September 30, 2045695000 This agreement is
cancelable upon 60 days written notice prior to the end of the fiscal year and therefore, the
City of Biloxi, Mississippidoes not have an ongoing financial responsibility.

Gulfport -Biloxi Regional Airport Authority 1 The GulfportBiloxi Regional Airport
Authority was chartered on August 25, 1977, and assumed control of the Airport on
October 1, 1977. The Ahority is comprised of one appointee each from the local
governmental units of the City of GulfppMississippj the City of Biloxi Mississippj and
Harrison County Mississippi These governmental units have agreed to subsidize the
Airport annually. During the past fiscal year, the City of Bilp¥ississippiprovided no
subsidy to the GulfpoiBiloxi Regional Airport. The City has budgeted $0 for the4£01
2015 fiscal year. The City of BiloxiMississippihas no equity interest in the organization.
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M. Other Commitments

Property Leases

On August 15, 2002, the City of BilgxiMississippi entered into the Point Cadet
Compromise and Settlement Agreement with the State Institutions of Higher Learning
(IHL) and the Secretary of State on behalf of that&Sof Mississippi, and th&olden
Nugget Casino The purpose of the agreement was to resolve public trust tidelands issues
affecting the Point Cadet Waterfront Development property. In lieu of the December 2,
1985, lease with the Board of Trustees ocatStinstitutions of Higher Learning, this
agreement provides that the City has an undivided one third interest in the entire Point
Cadet Development site. The first $2,733,000 of revenue from this property each year is
received by the City of Biloxi. Aladditional annual revenue which exceeds $2,733,000 is
allocated by thirds to the City of Biloxi, IHL, and the State Tidelands Trust Fund.

The two tidelands lease agreements with the State of Mississippi dated July 15, 1988,
continue in effect until Jun&0, 2018. Lease payments under those leases are now
established at $500,000 per year, but the Isle of Capri is obligated to make those payments.

Capital Projects

In connection with the Capital Projects Funds, the City has budgeted certain commitments
for engineering services, construction and other capital project costs. The projects are to be
funded, in part, with State and Federal grants. The remainder of the required funds will be
generated by local sources and insurance claim proceeds. The fgliswarsummary of

the budgeted commitment for capital projects at September 3@, 201

Total commitment for general Capital Projects $382685087
Funding sources:
Federal and State Grants $ 341,896,710
Bond Funds 37,720870
Enterprise Funds 1,456076
Insurance claim proceeds received 1,361,725
General Fundurplus and other future
sources of funds to be provided 249706
Total fund sources $ 382685087

Matching Fundsi USM Advanced Education Center

In 1997, the City pledged its sump and agreed to participate with the county and other
cities in funding the local matching contribution for the construction of the Advanced
Education Center at the USM Gulf Park cam
debt service for the $2,0@D0 in bonds issued by Harrison County will be approximately
$40,000 annually through September 2016.
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N. New Pension Standard

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. A& ounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions that revises and establishes newamcial reporting requirements for most
governments that provide their employees with pension benefits. The statement requires
employers to recognize a liability in their financial statements as employees earn their
pension benefits (that is, as they pdavservices to the government) effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2014. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption of this statement on the Cityobs f

O. Subsequent Events

T h e Ciahagdiment hmevaluated eventsccurring subsequent to year etimough
August 19 2015, which is the date thstatements were available to be issu€uw July 7,
2015 City Council authorized the Mayor to acceptofier of $49 million to settle the
Cityds B PHobzereop spifl foreeconomic losses caused by the 2010 oil spill.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actuali BudgetBasis
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Federal & state grants
Charges for services
Fines
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures
Administration
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services & charges
Contractual services
Capital outlay
Total
Executive
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services & charges
Contractual services
Total
Legislative
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services & charges
Contractual services
Capital outlay
Total
Judicial
Personnel services
Contractual services
Total
Legal
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services & charges
Contractual services
Capital outlay
Total

See

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 10,247,486 $10,247,486 $10,206,177 $ (41,309)
4,137,982 4,137,982 4,072,670 (65,312)
31,889,000 31,889,000 30,677,876 (1,211,124
357,734 373,819 (100,877) (474,696,
1,983,400 1,983,400 1,937,578 (45,822)
1,510,000 1,510,000 1,212,493 (297,507,
4,210,440 4,210,440 4,784,771 574,331
54,336,042 54,352,127 52,790,688 (1,561,439
1,559,708 1,559,708 1,537,782 21,926
19,375 14,774 14,774 -
795,450 1,362,772 1,354,447 8,325
281,325 273,604 280,353 (6,749)
15,000 15,000 11,142 3,858
2,670,858 3,225,858 3,198,498 27,360
238,734 238,734 238,007 727
4,700 4,416 4,053 363
10,250 10,734 10,711 23
15,250 15,050 11,434 3,616
268,934 268,934 264,205 4,729
522,189 522,189 501,039 21,150
9,700 9,650 6,809 2,841
127,000 141,659 91,799 49,860
6,500 7,891 6,931 960
2,500 2,500 - 2,500
667,889 683,889 606,578 77,311
165,530 165,530 165,530 -
1,250 1,250 1,045 205
166,780 166,780 166,575 205
622,452 622,452 614,444 8,008
10,550 9,778 7,229 2,549
9,750 9,125 6,910 2,215
36,870 38,267 35,594 2,673
5,700 5,700 5,014 686
685,322 685,322 669,191 16,131

Il ndependent

Continued on next page

Audi

torso
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(Continued)
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Community development
Personnel services 2,061,303 2,061,303 1,998,599 62,704
Supplies 143,000 164,050 133,672 30,378
Other services & charges 968,000 972,742 768,232 204,510
Contractual services 507,600 481,808 318,539 163,269
Capital outlay 57,000 57,000 239,317 (182,317,
Total 3,736,903 3,736,903 3,458,359 278,544
Parks & recreation
Personnel services 3,475,265 3,475,265 3,212,936 262,329
Supplies 362,075 352,311 325,349 26,962
Other services & charges 770,250 813,863 811,473 2,390
Contractual services 404,200 363,051 343,596 19,455
Capital outlay - 16,300 15,558 742
Total 5,011,790 5,020,790 4,708,912 311,878
Public safety
Personnel services 25,175,833 25,430,598 23,853,925 1,576,673
Supplies 1,368,710 1,312,466 1,257,659 54,807
Other services & charges 659,416 690,962 673,382 17,580
Contractual services 1,327,473 1,378,124 1,328,897 49,227
Capital outlay 438,800 810,100 727,921 82,179
Total 28,970,232 29,622,250 27,841,784 1,780,466
P ublic works
Personnel services 4,708,272 4,708,272 4,238,984 469,288
Supplies 881,950 739,419 726,676 12,743
Other services & charges 1,159,350 1,295,194 1,289,483 5,711
Contractual services 3,086,765 3,093,452 2,483,932 609,520
Capital outlay 131,100 166,100 160,507 5,593
Total 9,967,437 10,002,437 8,899,582 1,102,855
Nondepartmental
Other services & charges 3,487,465 3,487,465 3,517,008 (29,543)
Contractual services 1,189,507 1,291,752 1,305,995 (14,243)
Total 4,676,972 4,779,217 4,823,003 (43,786)
Total expenditures 56,823,117 58,192,380 54,636,687 3,555,693
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (2,487,075) (3,840,253) (1,845,999) 1,994,254
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 2,773,546 2,773,546 - (2,773,546
Transfers out (603,424) (603,424) (460,993) 142,431
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,170,122 2,170,122 (460,993) (2,631,115
Net change in fund balances (316,953) (1,670,131) (2,306,992) (636,861,
Fund balances, beginning of year 4,983,712 4,983,712 4,983,712
Fund balances, end of year $ 4666,759 $ 3313581 $ 2,676,720 $ (636,861
See I ndependent Auditors?o

Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Disability and Retirement Plans

Schedule of Funding Progress

($Thousands)
(6)
(2 Unfunded
Actuarial AAL as a
D Accrued 3) 4) (5) Percentage
Actuarial Liability Percent Unfunded Annual of Covered
Plan Value of (AAL) Funded AAL Covered Payroll
Year Ended Assets Entry Age Q) /(2) (2)- (1) Payroll (4) / (5)
9/30/2005 $ 9,087 $ 23,874 381% $ 14,787 $ 259  5,709.3%
9/30/2006 9,926 23,485 42.3 13,559 150 9,039.3%
9/30/2007 10,766 22,899 47.0 12,133 110 11,030.0%
9/30/2008 11,365 22,317 50.9 10,952 124  8,832.3%
9/30/209 11,870 25,916 45.8 14,046 128 10,973.4%
9/30/2010 11,062 24,511 45.1 13,449 131 10,266.4%
9/30/2011 10,456 24,285 43.1 13,829 125 11,063.3%
9/30/2012 9,480 24,053 39.4 14,573 73  19,963.0%
6/30/2013 9,216 24,137 38.2 14,921 - N/A
6/30/204 9,328 23,623 39.5 14,295 - N/A
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Fiscal Year Annual Required Percentage
101 /930 Valuation Date Contribution Contributed
200506 9/30/2005 $ 1,334,850 167.7%
200607 9/30/2006 1,230,451 165.0%
200708 9/30/2007 1,107,435 187.3%
200809 9/30/2008 1,012,412 243.8%
200910 9/30/2009 1,314,910 107.7%
201011 9/30/2010 1,273,514 106.1%
201312 9/30/2011 1,329,064 99.8%
201213 9/302012 1,415,714 N/A
201314 6/30/2013 1,463,984 N/A
201415 6/30/2014 1,430,885 N/A
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds

September 30, 2014

Special Revenue

Capital Projects

Community Employees’ 2002 TIF
Development Employees' State City General Obligation Public Improvement Capital
Block Disability & Unemployment Bicentennial 2000 2003 2012 Projects
Assets Grant Relief Fund Fund Trust Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Total
Cash $ 2929 $ - % 424,796 $ 31,028 $ - % - $ - $ - $ 485,120
Investments - - - - 83,929 634,910 789,434 254,020 1,762,293
Receivables:
Taxes - 6,909 - - - - - - 6,909
Other 19,733 - - - - - - - 19,733
Mortgage loans receivable 12,337 - - - - - - - 12,337
Total assets $ 61366 $ 6,909 $ 424,796 $ 31,028 83,929 $ 634,910 $ 789,434 $ 254,020 $ 2,286,392
Liabilities & Fund Balance
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 6,130 $ 6,909 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - % - $ 13,039
Total liabilities 6,130 6,909 - - - - - - 13,039
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Long-term receivables 12,337 - - - - - - - 12,337
Restricted for
Claims - - 424,796 - - - - - 424,796
Endowment - - - 31,028 - - - - 31,028
Committed to
Grant expenditures 42,899 - - - - - - - 42,899
Capital improvements - - - - 83,929 634,910 789,434 254,020 1,762,293
Total fund balances 55,236 - 424,796 31,028 83,929 634,910 789,434 254,020 2,273,353
Total liabilities & fund balances $ 61,366 $ 6,909 $ 424,796 $ 31,028 $ 83,929 $ 634,910 $ 789,434 $ 254,020 $ 2,286,392
See I ndependent Auditorsd Report
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Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Intergovernmental
Other income
Total revenues

Expenditures
Community Development
Benefit payments
Total expenditures

City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended Septeml3€r, 2014

Special Revenue Capital Projects

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers out

Total other financing sources

uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Community Employees' 2002 TIF
Development Employees' State City General Obligation Public Improvement Capital
Block Disability & Unemployment Bicentennial 2000 2003 2012 Projects
Grant Relief Fund Fund Trust Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Total
$ - $1,341,693 % - 0% - 3% - 3% - % - $ - 1,341,693
303,108 - - - - - - - 303,108
130,853 - 964 69 (51) 64 (418) (33) 131,448
433,961 1,341,693 964 69 (51) 64 (418) (33) 1,776,249
420,062 - - - - - - - 420,062
- 1,341,693 12,923 - - - - - 1,354,616
420,062 1,341,693 12,923 - - - - - 1,774,678
13,899 - (11,959) 69 (51) 64 (418) (33) 1,571
- - - - - - (99,876) (40,758) (140,634)
- - - - - - (99,876) (40,758) (140,634)
13,899 - (11,959) 69 (51) 64 (100,294) (40,791) (139,063)
41,337 - 436,755 30,959 83,980 634,846 889,728 294,811 2,412,416
$ 55236 $ - $ 424,796 $ 31,028 $ 83,929 $ 634,910 $ 789,434 $ 254,020 $ 2,273,353
See I ndependent Auditorsd Report
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Asset:

Restricted asset
Casl

Total restricted asse

Liabilities & Net Position

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds
(for seltinsured risks)
September 30, 2014

Liabilities payable from restricted

asset

Net position
Unrestricte:

Liability,
Propert Employet Gaming
& Workers Medica Revenu
Comp Claims Interruptior Total
$ 1,7594D $ 715,79 $ 78,49 2,553,70:
Due from other City func 2,136,30: - - 2,136,30:
$ 3,89571 $ 715,79 $ 78,49 4,690,00!
Claims contingency payal $ 389571 $ 71579 % - 4,611,50'
- - 78,49’ 78,49’
Total liabilities and net positic $ 3,895,71. $ 71579 $ 78,49 4,690,001
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Internal Service Funds
(for seltinsured risks)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Liability,
Property Employee Gaming
& Workers Medical Revenue
Comp. Claims Interruption Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services, insurance
bilings $ 5436,007 $ 6962421 $ - $12,398,428
COBRA contributions - 123,994 - 123,994
Total operating revenues $ 5436007 $ 7,086415 $ - $12522422
Operating expenses
Insurance and reinsurance $ 249059 $ 346463 $ - $ 2,837,059
Claims expense 2945411 6,742,585 - 9,687,996
Total operating expenses 5,436,007 7,089,048 - 12,525,055
Operating income (loss) - (2,633) - (2,633)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income - 2,633 175 2,808
Income before transfers - - 175 175
Change in net posttion - - 175 175
Net position, beginning - - 78,322 78,322
Net position, ending $ - $ - $ 78497 $ 78497
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
(for seltinsured risks)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital
financing activities
Loans (to) other funds
Net cash provided by (used in)
non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends on investments
Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end
of period

See

Liability,
Property Employee Gaming
& Workers Medical Revenue
Comp. Claims Interruption Total
$ 5436,007 $ 7,086,415 $ - $12,522422
(4,900,295)  (7,943,578) - (12,843,873
535,712 (857,163) - (321,451,
(1,323,027) - - (1,323,027
(1,323,027) - - (1,323,027
- 2,633 175 2,808
- 2,633 175 2,808
(787,315) (854,530) 175 (1,641,670
2,546,725 1,570,327 78,322 4,195,374
$ 1759410 $ 715797 $ 78497 $ 2,553,704
I ndependent Auditors?o

Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actuali Budget Basis

Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Variance
Positive
Actual Budge (Negative

Revenue

Ad valorem taxe 6,582,000 $ 6,622,38¢ $ (40,377

Intergovernment: 1,233,60: 1,233,60: -

Other incom 13,05¢ 22,10( (9,041

7,828,67! 7,878,09. (49,418

Expenditures

Principal retiremer 4,742,42: 5,060,63! 318,20:

Interest expen: 1,837,32i 1,986,17! 148,84

Paying agents' fe 11,30( 27,00( 15,70(

Total expenditure 6,591,05! 7,073,80! 482,74
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ¢

expenditure 1,237,62 804,28¢ 433,33:
Other financing sources (use:

Transfers ot - (2,773,54€ 2,773,541

Total other financing sources (us - (2,773,54¢€ 2,773,541
Excess (deficiency) of revenues c

and other sources o\

expenditures and other u 1,237,62 (1,969,257 3,206,87
Fund balances, beginning of y 15,232,24. 15,232,24 -
Fund balances, end of y: $16,469,86  $13,262,98 $ 3,206,87

See

Il ndependent

Audi tor sbo

Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual 1 Budget Basis
Community Development Block Grant
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Variance
Positive
Actual Budge (Negative
Revenue
Intergovernment: $ 31567 $ 902,43t $ (586,763
Other incom 209,54 152,41( 57,13.
Total revenue 525,21! 1,054,841 (529,631
Expenditures
Community Developme 530,63: 813,82! 283,19«
Excess (diciency) of revenues ov
expenditure (5,416 241,02: (246,437
Fund balances, beginning of y (29,755 (29,755 -
Fund balances, end of y: $ (35171) $ 211,266 $ (246,437
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actuali Budget Basis
Empl oyeesd DisFands | ity & Rel i ef
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Fire and Polic Employee Variance
Disability & Disability & Positive
Relief Funt Relief Funt Total Budge (Negative
Revenue
Ad valorem taxe $ 862,19t $ 484,95 $1,347,14 $1,357,21. $ (10,065
Expenditures
Benefit paymeni 862,19 484,95: 1,347,14 1,357,21. 10,06:
Excess of revenues over expendit - - - - -
Fund balances, beginning of y - - - - -
Fund balances, end of y: $ - % - % - $ - % -
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actuali Budget Basis
Empl oyeesd State Unempl oyment Fur
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Variance
Positive
Actual Budge (Negative
Revenue
Other incom $ 964 % 1,00 % (36)
Total revenue 964 1,00(¢ (36)
Expenditures
Benefit paymen 12,92: 15,00( 2,07
Excess (deficiency) of revenues o
expenditure (11,959 (14,000 2,041
Fund balances, beginning of y 436,75" 436,75" -
Fund balances, end of y: $ 42479%¢ $ 422,75' % 2,041
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actuali Budget Basis
City Bicentennial Trust Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Variance
Positive
Actual Budge (Negative
Revenue
Other incom $ 6 $ 70 % Q)
Total revenue 6¢ 7C (1)
Expenditures
Benefit paymen - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ¢
expenditure 69 7C (1)
Fund balances, beginning of y 30,95¢ 30,95¢ -
Fund balances, end of y: $ 31,02¢ % 31,02¢ % Q)
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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Revenues
Intergovernmental
Other income
Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital projects
Bond issue costs
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chges in Fund Balance

City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Budget and Actuali Budget Basis

Capital Projects Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Tax Increment

Other financing sources (uses)

Issuance of bonds
Issuance of notes
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing

sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over
expenditures and other uses

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Junior Lien
General General Obligation 2002 TIF 2012 GO Limited 2014 2014

Capital Public Improvement Capital Capital Obligation General Special Variance

Projects 2003 2000 Projects Projects Bond Series Obligation Obligation Positive

Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund 2014 Bond Fund Bond Series Total Budget (Negative)
$ 33,807,985 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 33,807,985 $ 357,565,809 $(323,757,824
- 64 (52) (32) (418) 1 817 870 1,250 112 1,138
33,807,985 64 (52) (32) (418) 1 817 870 33,809,235 357,565,921 (323,756,686
51,042,932 - - - - - - - 51,042,932 410,424,424 359,381,492
- - - - - 59,000 318,588 245,500 623,088 - (623,088)
51,042,932 - - - - 59,000 318,588 245,500 51,666,020 410,424,424 358,758,404
(17,234,947) 64 (52) (32) (418) (58,999) (317,771) (244,630) (17,856,785) (52,858,503) 35,001,718
- - - - - 1,995,000 14,310,706 21,000,000 37,305,706 - 37,305,706
169,579 - - - - - - - 169,579 7,628,480 (7,458,901}
9,397,644 - - - - - - - 9,397,644 5,227,990 4,169,654
- - - (40,758) (99,876) (1,932,682) (1,576,537)  (4,564,128) (8,213,981) (1,421,776) (6,792,205)
9,567,223 - - (40,758) (99,876) 62,318 12,734,169 16,435,872 38,658,948 11,434,694 27,224,254
(7,667,724) 64 (52) (40,790) (100,294) 3,319 12,416,398 16,191,242 20,802,163 (41,423,809) 62,225,972
(6,309,103) 634,846 83,980 294,811 889,728 - - - (4,405,738) (4,405,738) -
$(13,976,827) $ 634,910 $ 83,928 $ 254,021 $ 789,434 $ 3,319 $12,416,398 $16,191,242 $ 16,396,425 $ (45,829,547) $ 62,225,972

See I ndependent Auditorsd Report
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget

Water and Sewer Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Revenue
Charges for service
Water and sewer charg
Keesler Air Force Base, sev
Intergovernmental revenu
Interest incom
Other incom
Total revenue

Expense
Personal servic
Contracted servic
Other services and char
Debt principa
Interest expen:
Captal outlay
Total expense

Operating income (los
Income béore transfer
Transfers ot

Change in net positic

See

Variance
Positive

Actual Budge (Negative

$13,385,81  $12,747,00 $ 638,81(

1,024,55I 700,00( 324,55(
(96,740 - (96,740
10,46 11,50( (1,039
3,82t 6,00( (2,175

14,327,90 13,464,50 863,40t

1,607,69. 1,646,05' 38,36¢

10,097,72 10,107,96 10,24

1,517,96 1,812,95; 294,99;
271,98( 94,51¢ (177,461
91,74( 24,95« (66,786

3,93¢ 4,80( 86€

13,591,02 13,691,25 100,22t

736,88( (226,752 963,63:

736,88( (226,752 963,63:

(502,750 (1,883,383 1,380,63.

$ 234,13( $(2,110,13c $ 2,344,26!

Il ndependent

Audi tor sbo

Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget

Biloxi Port Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Revenue
Charges for service
Harbor fees and rer
Intergovernmental revent
Other incom
Total revenue

Expense
Personal servic
Contracted servic
Other services and chart
Bond principa
Interest expese
Capital outla
Total expense

Operating inome (loss
Income before transfe
Transfers ot

Change in at positiol

See

Variance

Positve

Actual Budge (Negative
$ 147399  $ 1,497,700 $ (23,709
259,83 609,88: (350,046
15,78¢ 5,10(¢ 10,68t
1,749,61. 2,112,68: (363,070
1,087,96: 1,122,13. 34,17(
70,41¢ 101,17( 30,75
315,25: 312,44 (2,804
150,00( 150,00( -
71,51: 69,78: (1,729

- 72 72

1,695,14! 1,755,60! 60,46(
54,46¢ 357,07¢ (302,610
54,46¢ 357,07¢ (302,610
(219,920 (1,319,407 1,099,48

$ (165452 $ (962,329 $ 796,87

Il ndependent

Audi tor sbo

Repor
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Revenue:
Charges for services, insunce
billings
COBRA contribution
Interest incom
Total revenue

Expense
Insurance and reinsurar
Claims expere
Total expense
Operating income (los

Income before transfe

Change in net positit

City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget
Internal Service Funds

(for seltinsured risks)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Liability,
Propert Employet Gaming Variance
& Workers Medica Revenu Positive
Comp Claims Interruptior Total Budge (Negative
$5,436,00 $6,962,42. $ - $ 12,398,42 $12,246,00 $ 152,42
- 123,99: - 123,99: 85,0 38,99/
- 2,63 17t 2,80¢ 7,40( (4,592
5,436,00 7,089,04 17t 12,525,23 12,338,40 186,83
2,490,59 346,46! - 2,837,05! 4,617,13. 1,780,07.
2,945,41 6,742,58! - 9,687,99 7,998,86: (1,689,128
5,436,00 7,089,04: - 12,525,05 12,616,00 90,94
- - 17t 17t (277,600 277,77
- - 17t 17t (277,600 277,77!
$ - $ - $ 17t $ 17t $ (277,600 $ 277,77
See Independent Auditorsdé Report.
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Investment$ All Funds
September 30, 2014

Purchase Maturity Reported Fair
Yield Date Date Amount Value
Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Funds
2014 GO Bond Fund
Money Market Fund 0.01% various N/A $ 12,757587 $ 12,757,587
2014 TIF Capital Projects Bond Fund
Money Market Fund 0.01% various N/A 17,226,027 17,226,027
GOPI 2000 Bond Fund
Money Market Fund 0.01%  various N/A 83,929 83,929
2003 GO Bond Fund
Money Market Fund 0.01% various N/A 634,910 634,910
2012 GO Bond Fund
Money Market Fund 0.01%  various N/A 789,434 789,434
2002 TIF Capital Projects Bond Fund
Money Market Fund 0.01% various N/A 254,020 254,020
Debt Service Funds
Money Market Fund 0.01% various N/A 12 12
Total investments,
governmental funds 31,745,919 31,745,919
Proprietary funds
Biloxi Port Fund
Money Market Fund 0.01% various N/A 435,560 435,560
Money Market Fund 0.01% various N/A 192,523 192,523
Money Market Fund 0.01%  various N/A 223,052 223,052
Total investments,
proprietary funds 851,135 851,135
Total investments $ 32597054 $ 32,597,054
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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General Obligation Bonds and Note
General Obligation Bonds, Series 1
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series :
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2
Mississippi Development Bank Spe:
Obligation Bonds, Series 2C
Total Gereral Obligation Bonds and No

Limited Obligation Bonds and Note:
Mississippi Development Bank Promissory No
Mississippi Development Authority Lo
Tax Increment Limited Obligation Refundi
Bonds, Series 2006
Mississippi Development Bank Promissory No
Tax Increment Junior Lien Limited Obligati
Bonds, Series 20:
Total Limited Obligation Bonds and No

Other General Long-Term Debt
Lease/Purchase, Hancock B
Lease/Purchase, Hancock B
Total Other General Longerm Deb

Total General Longerm Deb

Proprietary Funds Debt
Water and Sewer Pollution Caoal Loan:
Drinking Water Improvement Loi
Limited Tax Port Bonds, Series 1¢

Total Proprietary Funds De

Totals

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Lorg-Term Debt
September 30, 2014

Balanct Balanc: Requirements Year End
Date Original October 1 New September 3 September 30, 20
Issuel Issue 201z Issue Retirement 201« Principa Interes
12/01/9¢ $10,000,00 $ 895,000 $ - $ 89500 $ - $ - 3% -
10/28/1: 9,350,001 8,495,001 - 1,075,00 7,420,001 1,105,001 169,42
04/01/1: 6,000,001 5,690,001 - 320,00( 5,370,001 335,00t 111,46!
01/15/1: 14,000,00 - 14,000,00 - 14,000,00 755,00( 681,90(
02/24/1: 21,000,00 - 21,000,00 - 21,000,00 - 1,365,77.
15,080,00 35,000,00 2,290,001 47,790,00 2,195,001 2,328,56
01/04/0: 10,000,00¢( 2,767,24. - 697,51. 2,069,733 580,80: 19,39
11/01/0: 500,00( 253,84: - 25,75¢ 228,08: 26,53( 7,07¢
10/31/0¢ 31,685,00 30,120,00 - 1,420,00 28,700,00 1,490,001 1,335,24.
10/22/0¢ 4,500,001 3,361,84. - 309,15¢ 3,052,68. 295,421 44,92¢
06/26/1: 1,995,00 - 1,995,00 - 1,995,00 120,00 65,18(
36,502,92 1,995,00 2,452,42i 36,045,49 2,512,75. 1,471,82
11/29/0° 438,78. 82,24. - 70,24¢ 11,99 11,99/ 62
04/23/1. 603,20( 362,61 - 118,49¢ 244,11 120,85 4,85¢
444.,85¢ - 188,74 256,11 132,85: 4,92(
52,027,78 36,995,00 4,931,17! 84,091,60 4,840,60! 3,805,30
1998201« 9,480,01! 3,528,58! 169,57¢ 223,97 3,474,18 229,75¢ 64,50(
11/03/1: 1,133,86 1,122,00. - 48,00¢ 1,073,99! 48,95: 20,50°
12/01/9¢ 2,500,001 1,240,00i - 150,00( 1,090,000t 155,00( 59,90¢
5,890,58. 169,57¢ 421,98: 5,638,18. 433,71. 144,91.
$ 57,918,36 $37,164,57 $ 5,353,15  $ 89,729,79 $ 527431 $ 3,950,21
See I ndependent Auditorsd Report
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City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials
And Other Municipal Employees

Name Positior Compan Bonc

A. J. Holloway Mayor Fidelity and Depos $ 100,00(
Company of Marylan

George Lawrenc Councilmal Fidelity and Depos 100,00(
Company of Marylan

Felix Gine: Councilmal Fidelity and Depos 100,00(
Company of Marylan

Dixie Newmat Councilmal Fidelity and Degosi 100,00
Company of Marylan

Robert L. Deming Il Councilmai Fidelity and Depos 100,00(
Company of Marylan

Paul A. Tisdal Councilmal Fidelity and Depos 100,00(
Company of Marylan

Kenny Glaval Councilmal Fidelity and Depos 100,00(
Company of Marylan

David Fayar Councilmai Fidelity and Depos 100,00(
Company of Marylan

Scott McElroy Controlle Fidelity and Depos 50,00(
Company of Marydnc

Stacy Thacke City Clerki Fidelity and Depos 50,00(
Tax Collecto Company of Marylan

Pamela Trochess Court Clerl Fidelity and Depos 10,00(
Company of Marylan

John Millel Director of Polic Fidelity andDeposi 50,00(

Company of Marylan

NoteT In addition to the Surety Bond Coverage detailed above, all employees are covered under
a $100,000 Honég Blanket Bond.

See

Il ndependent

Audi tor sbo

Repor
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Section Il

Statistical Section



Thi s part of the City of Bi | poxt ipr@sents cdetailgulr e h ¢
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
di scl osur es, and required suppl ementary I n
financial health.

Schedules of: Page

Financial Trends 84
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
government 6s f i nan cbeiaglhavpaanfed oveninmc e and wel |

Revenue Capacity 89
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess ¢he gome nt 6 s
most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 92
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the governmentds current | evels of outstand,i

to isswe additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 97

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the
takeplace.

Operating Information 99
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the goverr

services the government provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unlesstherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.

83



Schedule 1

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2014

2013 2012 2011

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related de$208,874,271
Restricted 55,596,738
Unrestricted 8,230,037

$217,689,178 $198,377,139 $202,599,253
26,040,170 38,699,539 25,272,915
13,068,206 4,992,905 9,779,655

Total governmental activities net position $272,701,046

$256,797,554 $242,069,583 $237,651,823

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related de$t144,899,350
Restricted 851,135
Unrestricted (2,192,026)

$129,653,322 $100,198,366 $ 78,380,815
844,640 837,393 1,101,967
(6921,099)  (3011177) 4,528,206

Total business-type activities net position $143,558,459

$123,576,863 $ 98,024,582 $ 84,010,988

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets $353,773,621
Restricted 56,447,873
Unrestricted 6,038,011

$347,342,500 $298,575,505 $280,980,068
26,884,810 39,536,932 26,374,882
6,147,107 1,981,728 14,307,861

Total primary government net position $416,259,505

$380,374,417 $340,094,165 $321,662,811




Fiscal Year

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

$182,350,760
30,767,976
9,948,987

$162,209,803
35,399,734
19,660,287

$148,298,408
30,633,195
32,009,500

$137,454,714
10,146,382
70,540,236

$122,446,292
11,814,028
58,845,246

$125,208,731
13,202,408
26,346,700

$223,067,723

$217,269,824

$210,941,103

$218,141,332

$193,105,566

$164,757,839

$ 70,719,525
1,117,520
2,002,188

$ 61,716,508
1,105,935

(11,504,300)

$ 47,402,255
1,121,037
7,505,527

$ 41,667,384
1,726,398
9,620,633

$ 39,094,116
1,684,296
13,393,377

$ 39,210473
1,897,170
12,549,989

$ 73,839,233

$ 51,318,143

$ 56,028,819

$ 53,014,415

$ 54,171,789

$ 53,657,632

$253,070,285
31,885,496
11,951,175

$223,926,311
36,505,669
8,155,987

$195,700,663
31,754,232
39,515,027

$179,122,098
11,872,780
80,160,869

$161,540,408
13,498,324
72,238,623

$164,419,204
15,099,578
38,896,689

$296,906,956

$268,587,967

$266,969,922

$271,155,747

$247,277,355

$218,415,471
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Schelule 2
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government $ 5,789,900 $ 5,749,015 $ 5,024,709 $ 5,769,907
Parks and recreation 6,920,693 5,999,954 5,216,154 5,243,857
Public safety 36,417,140 34,082,368 34,096,575 33,274,315
Public works 10,652,115 11,876,265 10,500,823 11,023,132
Community development 3,861,583 6,720,748 4,546,745 4,488,481
Unallocated depreciation, infrastructure 3,043,524 2,630,920 2,642,780 2,630,916
Interest and other, long-term debt 2,161,010 2,766,751 2,499,336 2,600,008
Total governmental activities expenses 68,845,965 69,826,021 64,527,122 65,030,616
Business-type activities:
Water & Sewer 15,459,099 14,236,840 14,605,675 14,810,503
Biloxi Port Fund 2,973,079 2,547,550 1,770,860 1,659,485
Point Cadet Development Corporation 200,000 - - -
Total business-type activities expenses 18,632,178 16,784,390 16,376,535 16,469,988
Total primary government expenses $ 87478143 $ 86610411 $ 80,903,657 $ 81,500,604
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General government $ 675 $ 844 $ 715 $ 662
Parks and recreation 523,550 529,679 544,357 482,485
Public safety 1,222,643 1,175,149 1,576,015 1,463,649
Public works 1,455,771 1,419,928 1,433,888 1,367,422
Community development 4,167,428 4,988,389 4,673,921 4,790,107
Operating grants and contributions 902,346 2,310,684 1,481,036 1,437,584
Capital grants and contributions 43,981,867 30,528,891 20,131,998 25,576,003
Total governmental activities program reviews 52,254,280 40,953,564 29,841,930 35,117,912
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Water & Sewer 14,120,797 13,755,104 13,948,734 14,714,317
Biloxi Port Fund 1,477,090 1,338,749 1,386,143 1,523,162
Point Cadet Development Corporation 24,929 23,847 25,330 22,668
Capital grants and contributions 1,939,175 4,450,601 1,287,599 477,166
Total business-type activities programrevenues 17,561,991 19,568,301 16,647,806 16,737,313

Total primary government program revenues $ 69816271 $ 60521,865 $ 46489,736 $ 51,855,225




Fiscal Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
5,293,011 $ 6,289,441 $ 5545240 $ 4,902,940 $ 4,444,590 4,505,044
5,456,041 5,892,707 5,720,051 4,797,664 4,294,691 5,528,890

36,873,912 39,554,918 36,120,835 29,601,484 27,540,929 29,591,921

12,577,626 12,174,671 18,051,184 22,402,881 64,616,111 19,942,138
4,810,435 7,633,964 4,332,445 4,728,570 2,364,826 7,186,148
2,583,406 2,355,172 2,292,270 2,254,458 2,219,360 1,869,584
2,740,362 2,750,274 2,866,857 1,996,618 2,786,442 3,327,475

70,334,793 76,651,147 74,928,882 70,684,615 108,266,949 71,951,200

14,080,437 13,064,569 11,475,922 9,829,590 9,925,601 12,515,510
1,611,282 1,594,012 1,653,803 1,254,929 1,415,121 1,666,327

34 471 18,851 131 5,730 372,659
15,691,753 14,659,052 13,148,576 11,084,650 11,346,452 14,554,496
86,026,546 $ 91310199 $ 88,077,458 $ 81,769,265 $ 119,613,401 86,505,696

771 $ 1506 $ 1935 $ 1,080 $ 34,656 36,776
462,444 407,165 398,565 442,126 522,282 596,247
1,499,085 1,462,173 1,236,468 1,136,610 1,352,917 1,249,630
1,035,303 585,385 603,235 591,434 544,772 702,655

4,854,342 5,115,057 5,204,757 5,724,975 5,761,969 4,151,971
2,180,921 4,311,030 2,453,282 13,728,661 56,706,429 1,196,313

33,925,142 9,135,507 2,476,562 2,454,944 1,214,462 17,373,396

43,958,008 21,017,823 12,374,804 24,079,830 66,137,487 25,306,988

10,205,340 7,519,605 7,738,610 7,864,670 6,989,753 8,762,117
1,127,665 1,470,994 1,246,597 1,660,968 1,768,179 1,752,748

19,873 24,837 58,844 27,595 20,874 17,594

3,287,713 1,379,466 7,222,126 1,801,139 2,269,780 978,930

14,640,591 10,394,902 16,266,177 11,354,372 11,048,586 11,511,389

58,598599 $ 31412725 $ 28,640,981 $ 35434202 $ 77,186,073 36,818,377
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Schedule 2
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basiof accounting)

Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities $ (16,591,685) $ (28,872,457) $ (34,685,192) $ (29,912,704
Business-type activities (1,070,187) 2,783,911 271,271 267,325

Total primary government net expense $ (17,661,872) $ (26,088,546) $ (34,413,921) $ (29,645,379

General Revenues and Other
Changes In Net Position
Governmental activities:

Taxes

Property taxes $ 18,061,043 $ 18,065315 $ 17,894,495 $ 18,000,323

Intergovernmental, unrestricted 14,493,067 13,915,324 13,380,910 13,155,811

Gaming taxes 18,805,326 18,878,204 18,958,797 19,617,237

Other taxes 519,032 544,906 448,154 1,445,804
Unrestricted grants and contributions 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,543,637 1,200,000
Unrestricted investment earnings 20,323 49,425 216,010 274,424
Insurance proceeds - - - -
Miscellaneous 210,985 413,597 151,675 472,894
Transfers (20,814,599)  (22,519,734)  (13,490,726) (9,669,689
Special item

Community Disaster Loan forgiveness - 13,053,391 - -

Total governmental activities 32,495,177 43,600,428 39,102,952 44,496,804

Business-type activities:

Property taxes 223,650 230,264 223,269 223,343
Investment earnings 13,534 18,373 28,328 11,398
Transfers 20,814,599 22,519,734 13,490,726 9,669,689
Total business-type activities 21,051,783 22,768,371 13,742,323 9,904,430
Total primary government $ 53546960 $ 66,368,799 $ 52,845275 $ 54,401,234

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities $ 15903492 $ 14,727971 $ 4,417,760 $ 14,584,100
Business-type activities 19,981,596 25,552,282 14,013,594 10,171,755

Total primary government $ 35,885,088 $ 40,280,253 $ 18,431,354 $ 24,755,855




Fiscal Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

$ (26,376,785) $ (55,633,324) $ (62,554,078) $ (46,604,785) $ (42,129462) $ (46,644,212
(1051,162)  (4,264150) 3,117,601 260,722 (297,866) (3,043,107

$ (27427,947) $ (59,897,474) $ (59436477) $ (46,335,063) $ (42427,328) $ (49,687,319

$ 18148452 $ 18125894 $ 14,850,437 $ 11,884,058 $ 16,859,108 $ 15,599,678
13,053,295 13,405,142 14,131,140 14,098,356 12,519,876 14,598,133
18,902,497 19,631,434 22,030,475 22,518,892 15,187,146 20,968,845

995,736 711,062 1,065,200 1,684,283 706,999 654,641
3,367,995 6,018,256 399,672 - 527,815 1,200,000
307,179 399,787 2,009,599 4,217,134 2,298,869 1,136,693

- - - 12,794,680 16,306,863 1,436,097

729,762 251,009 190,307 1,444,358 756,751 906,688
(23,330,232) 3,419,459 677,019 2,998,790 (933,637) (3,034,089

32,174,684 61,962,043 55,353,849 71,640,551 64,229,790 53,466,686

219,590 200,134 229,178 872,186 920,215 657,426

22,430 46,799 344,644 699,508 389,262 301,696
23,330,232 (702,459) (677,019)  (2,998,790) (497,454) 3,034,089
23,572,252 (446,526) (103197)  (1,427,096) 812,023 3,993,211

$ 55746936 $ 61515517 $ 55250652 $ 70213455 $ 65041813 $ 57,459,897

$ 5797899 $ 6328719 $ (7,200,229) $ 25,035,766 $ 22,100,328 $ 6,822,474
22,521,090 (4,710,676) 3,014,404 (1,157,374) 514,157 950,104

$ 28318989 $ 1618043 $ (4,185825) $ 23878392 $ 22614485 $ 7,772578
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Schedule 3
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011
General Fund
Reserved $ - $ - $ - $ -
Unreserved - - - -
Nonspendable
Prepaids 1,038,687 1,606,357 1,885,369 1,271,971
Restricted for
Public Safety 2,118,923 2,283,789 2,147,890 2,304,194
Committed for
Capital improvements 603,424 603,424 961,111 2,437,365
Unassigned 3,765,031 7,281,575 10,996,461 13,093,202
Total general fund $ 7526065 $11,775145 $15990,831  $19,106,732
All other governmental funds
Reserved $ - $ - $ - $ -
Unreserved, reported in:
General Capital Projects Fund - - - -
Other non-major governmental funds,
special revenue - - - -
Nonspendable
Prepaids - - - 3,500,146
Long-term receivables 12,337 71,091 72,253 73,857
Restricted for
Claims 424,796 436,755 - -
Endowment 31,028 30,959 30,888 30,649
Committed for
Grant expenditures 42,899 - - -
Capital improvements 34,680,797 6,207,516 16,100,494 9,027,355
Debt Service 17,694,871 - - -
Unassigned - 16,447,973 19,755,268 10,786,211
Total all other governmental funds $52,886,728 $23,194294  $35958903 $23418,218

(1) For fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the State changed its methodology for applying GASB
Statement No0.33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexaarilransactions to
individual income taxes. The State now reports an estimate of underpayments of individial
income taxes. The State also changed its method to estimate overpayments of indiach&al inc
taxes (i.e., income tax refunds payable and applied refunds). For the purpose of reporting
underpayments, the availability period for the General Fund individual income taxes was
extended from thirgpne days to twelve months after yesmd. Where th underpayments
exceed overpayments, individual income tax revenues are recognized to the extent of estimated
overpayments (i.e., income tax refunds payable and applied refunds).

(2) For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, GASB Statement 54, Fund Bépuréng and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, was implemented. Fiscal years prior to 2011 have not
been restated.



Fiscal Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
$ 3,142,091 $ 3822099 $ 2345677 $ 2864621 $ 2525615 $ 2,000,359
15,040,957 23,635,948 36,736,391 55,178,878 52,281,003 26,975,995
$18,183,048 $ 27,458,047 $ 39,082,068 $ 58,043,499 $54,806,618 $ 28,976,354
$28,706,822 $ 32905850 $ 28434989 $ 7442457 $ 9453276 $11,420,479
- - - 20,133,801 - -
626,741 - 568,205 812,124 695,568 539,941

$29,333563 $ 32,636,352 $ 29,003,194 $ 28,388,382 $10,148,844 $ 11,960,420
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Schedule 4
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Changes in Fund Balance,
Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011
Rewvenues
Taxes $ 18,061,043 $ 18,065,315 $ 17,894,496 $ 18,000,327
Licenses and permits 4,105,012 3,971,017 3,600,317 3,972,726
Intergovernmental 75,025,316 64,224,966 52,759,556 59,699,160
Charges for services 1,930,054 1,900,722 1,945,448 1,841,049
Fines 1,582,593 1,162,496 1,461,955 1,336,302
Other 3,483,482 4,694,793 4,188,264 4,417,712
Total revenues 104,187,500 94,019,309 81,850,036 89,267,276
Expenditures
General government 4,841,742 5,131,720 4,300,384 5,101,367
Parks and recreation 4,154,492 5,328,234 4,870,366 4,948,222
Public safety 30,312,720 30,479,166 29,711,155 28,495,792
Public works 9,008,665 8,946,705 9,922,377 9,383,848
Community development 3,852,521 5,969,673 3,838,829 3,481,616
Non-departmental 5,390,673 5,066,437 4,220,796 3,934,012
Retirement contribution - - -
Capital outlay 30,460,296 18,752,843 7,596,960 22,807,930
Debt service:
Principal 4,742,428 4,596,677 3,520,949 4,147,114
Interest 1,848,628 2,426,967 2,183,209 2,289,344
Bond issue costs 623,088 - 419,948 -
Total expenditures 95,235,253 86,698,422 70,584,973 84,589,245
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 8,952,247 7,320,887 11,265,063 4,678,031
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Insurance proceeds - - - -
Issuance of bonds 37,305,706 - 9,673,738 -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - (3,781,448) (5,980,000) -
Issuance of notes - - 6,083,655 -
Capital lease - - - -
Transfers in 9,301,508 7,217,108 2,588,311 811,932
Transfers out (30,116,107) (27,736,842) (14,205,984) (10,481,621
Total other financing sources (uses) 16,491,107 (24,301,182) (1,840,280) (9,669,689
Net change in fund balances $ 25443354 $ (16,980,295) $ 9,424,783 $ (4,991,658

Debt services as a percentage
of noncapital expenditures 10.2% 10.1% 9.1% 10.4%



Fiscal Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
18,148,456 $ 18125894 $ 14850437 $ 11884058 $ 16,859,108 $ 15,599,678
3,848,235 4,006,293 4,192,441 4,366,535 4,059,907 3,667,843
69,507,081 47,334,921 37,283,930 50,509,539 83,596,269 53,337,778
1,520,101 1,035,225 1,198,608 1,000,762 1,124,939 1,081,843
1,404,579 1,361,195 1,202,481 1,123,537 1,346,888 1,241,663
5,015,051 4,778,893 5,882,659 10,760,698 6,956,788 5,442,861
99,443,503 76,642,421 64,610,556 79,645,129 113,943,899 80,371,666
4,650,116 5,549,821 5,111,940 4,319,296 4,221,591 4,225,009
5,213,572 5,316,864 5,344,806 3,965,717 3,766,106 4,926,209
32,081,669 33,953,635 34,791,692 28,417,622 27,139,584 26,922,427
12,358,655 11,340,820 15,457,386 20,885,545 63,498,853 18,802,996
3,587,332 6,423,995 3,425,986 2,338,863 2,248,326 3,702,265
4,956,816 4,826,960 5,003,572 4,031,368 2,919,036 5,535,248
- - - - - 2,108,989
25,130,739 14,560,072 11,351,010 7,986,131 3,259,444 19,299,416
3,878,578 3,621,661 3,278,169 3,590,680 4,787,845 9,813,918
2,367,400 2,454,374 2,570,957 1,615,844 2,786,442 3,246,883
66,184 - - 75,219 - 80,592
94,291,061 88,048,202 86,335,518 77,226,285 114,627,227 98,663,052
5,152,442 (11,405,781) (21,724,962) 2,418,844 (683,328) (18,292,286
- - - 12,794,680 16,306,863 5,528,315

- - - 34,020,000 - 5,530,000

(31,669,936) -

4,500,000 2,717,000 2,258,000 4,000,000 7,000,000 2,000,000
- - 438,782 - 897,699 -
4,234,063 6,675,931 9,168,356 28,184,393 3,255,948 17,378,176
(5,189,932) (5,973,471) (8,491,337) (28,271,562) (2,758,494) (15,429,874
3,544,131 3,419,460 3,373,801 19,057,575 24,702,016 15,006,617
8696573 $ (7,986321) $ (18351,161) $ 21476419 $ 24018688 $ (3,285,669
9.3% 8.5% 8.4% 7.9% 7.0% 15.3%



Schedule 5
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Assessed Value and Actual
Value of Taxable Roperty
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property (1, Personal Property

Fiscal Yeal Assesse Actual Assesse Actual
Ended Value Value Value Value
201« $ 433584,14 % 3,169,474,73  $ 86,086,95 $ 573,913,02
201z 435,311024 3,182,098,12 82,773,39 551,822,66
201z 429,562,38 3,140,075,94 82,127,81 547,518,76
2011 432,803,92 3,163,771,36 81,961,91 546,412,79
201C 422,530,04 3,088,669,93 94,168,47 627,789,85
200¢ 416,010,81 3,041,014,72 99,426,26 662,841,78
200¢ 315,103,93 2,303,391,34 86,235,19 574,901,32
2007 264,457,01 1,933,165,31 42,427,80 282,852,06
200¢ 367,933,78 2,689,574,42 97,968,89 653,125,93
200t 358,029,58 2,617175,34 90,986,49 606,576,60

(1) Class 1 residential, owner occupied is assessed at 10% of true
Class 21 commercial is assessed at 15% of true \
Above schedule uses estimated combined assessrierdfra3.68% for real propen

Schedule 6
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Direct and Overlapping
Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Biloxi
Fiscal Yeat Operating Debt
Ended Tax Year Millage Service Total
201¢ 201: 20.9( 9.2( 30.1¢(
201c 2012 20.9( 9.2C 30.1(
2012 2011 20.9( 9.2C 30.1(
201 201(C 20.9( 9.2( 30.1¢(
201(¢ 200¢ 20.9( 9.2( 30.1¢(
200¢ 200¢ 20.9( 9.2( 30.1¢(
200¢ 2007 20.9( 9.2( 30.1¢(
2007 200¢ 20.9( 9.2( 30.1¢(
200¢€ 200t 20.9( 9.2( 30.1¢(
200¢ 200¢ 22.4( 7.7C 30.1¢(

Ad valorem taxes on real propertseaollected in arrears for each calendar year. The tax is le'
September of the tax year on all property on the tax roll as of January 1 of the same year. Con
ad valorem tax is collected in the fiscal year ending in the calendasylesequent to the calen

year for which the tax is asses:



Utility Automobile & Mobile Home Total
Ratio of
Assesse Actual Assesse Actual Assesse Actual Assesse
Value Value Value Value Value Value to Actual
$38,561,28 $257,075,22 $44,272,47 $147,576,05 $602,505,19 $4,148,039,04 14.53%
35,325,44 235,502,95 45,166,01 150,553,36 598,575,87 4,119,977,10 14.53%
30,756,85 205,045,72 48,253,04 160,88,47; 590,700,10 4,053,483,90 14.57%
33,429,52 222,863,51 48,500,40 161,668,00 596,695,76 4,094,715,66 14.57%
30,822,60 205,484,06 56,529,07 188,430,23 604,050,20 4,110,374,08 14.70%
30,021,99 200,146,60 60,482,82 201609,42: 605,941,89 4,105,612,52 14.76%
28,489,55 189,930,36 65,897,36 219,657,89 495,726,05 3,287,880,91 15.08¥
20,810,41 138,736,07 61,828,28 206,094,29 389,523,52 2,560,87,737 15.21%
21,956,50 146,376,68 54,004,36 180,014,54 541,863,53 3,669,091,58 14.77%
23,589,40 157,262,66 46,875,39 156,251,32 519,480,87 3,537,265,94  14.69¥
Harrison County Biloxi School District
Operating Debt Operating Debt Total Total City
Millage Service Total Millage Service Total Millage and Schoo
32.5¢ 3.37 35.9¢ 36.8:2 6.2 43.0¢ 109.1( 73.1¢F
32.5¢ 3.37 35.9¢ 35.1¢ 7.8¢ 43.0¢ 109.1( 73.1¢F
32.5¢ 3.37 35.9¢ 33.7¢ 1.71 41.5¢ 107.6( 71.6¢
32.5¢ 3.37 35.9¢ 34.1: 7.4z 41.5¢ 107.6( 71.6¢
32.5¢ 3.37 35.9¢ 32.97 7.11 40.0¢ 106.1: 70.1¢
32.5¢ 3.37 35.9¢ 30.6¢ 7.3¢ 38.0¢ 104.0¢ 68.1:
34.2¢ 2.37 36.61 30.4¢ 7.5¢ 38.0¢ 104.7¢ 68.1:
34.3¢ 2.14 36.4¢ 30.4¢ 7.5¢ 38.0¢ 104.6: 68.1:
34.1¢ 2.3t 36.4¢ 30.5¢ 7.4¢ 38.0¢ 104.6: 68.1:
33.3¢ 2.31 35.7( 29.01] 9.0z 38.0¢ 103.8: 68.1:
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Schedule 7
City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and 10 Years Prior

2014 2004
Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total Taxable of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Valuation Value Rank  Valuation
Beau Rivage $ 69,451,295 1 1164% $ 68,068,899 1 13.30%
Imperial Palace 34,041,516 2 5.71% 21,480,465 3 4.20%
Mississippi Power 25,604,768 3 4.29% 11,110,396 6 2.17%
Golden Nugget Casino 12,474,355 4 2.09% 17,896,829 4 3.50%
Harrah's Casino 17,251,193 5 2.89% 32,348,080 2 6.32%
Hard Rock Casino 20,516,943 6 3.44% -
Palace Casino 10,275,251 7 1.72% 8,603,031 8 1.68%
Boomtown Casino 5,038,308 8 0.84% -
American National 6,091,702 9 1.02% -
Merit Health Bilox 5,717,721 10 0.96% -
Bell South 8,596,374 9 1.68%
Casino Magic 16,617,032 5 3.25%
Mastar 8,674,057 7 1.69%
President Casino 5,604,828 10 1.10%
Total $ 206,463,052 34.60% $ 198,999,991 38.89%
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Schedule 8
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Property Tax Levies
and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the

Taxes Levid Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Fiscal for the Percentagt  in Subsequen Percentagt
Year Fiscal Yeat Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
201¢ $ 39,357,400 $ 38,844,11 98.70% $ 493,10¢ $ 39,337,22 99.95Y
201: 39,416,88. 38,979,02 98.89¥ 392,46« 39,371,48 99.88Y
201z 38,265,89 38,052,88 99.44Y 403,65¢ 38,456,54 100.50%
2011 38,618,48 38,598,05 99.95% 632,15: 39,230,21 101.58%
201 37,966,43 37,478,38 98.71% 683,98 38,162,36 100.52%
200¢ 30,784,71 29,715851 96.53¥% 739,62! 30,455,47 98.93Y
200¢ 23,611,12 23,088,75 97.79% 1,176,801 24,265,55 102.77%
2007 33,817,04 33,670,31 99.57% 1,094,22 34,764,54 102.80%
200¢ 32,839,57 32,332,48 98.46% 415,45¢ 32,747,94 99.72Y
200¢ 31,900,73 31,894,51 99.98¥% 434 59 32,329,11 101.34Y
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Schedule 9
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Ratios of Outstanding
Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Gowvernmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Other Water/
General Limited General Sewer
Fiscal Obligation Obligation Capital Long-Term Rewvenue SRF
Year Bonds Bonds Leases Dehbt Bonds Loans
2014 $ 47,790,000 $ 30,695,000 $ 256,112 $ 5350497 $ - $ 3,474,187
2013 15,080,000 30,120,000 444,859 6,382,925 - 3,528,580
2012 20,990,000 31,485,000 628,443 18,414,602 - 2,922,390
2011 12,810,000 32,785,000 214,303 19,445,551 - 1,448,801
2010 14,465,000 34,020,000 467,234 20,702,664 - 1,121,106
2009 17,110,000 34,020,000 713,228 17,436,183 - 1,296,002
2008 19,800,000 34,020,000 949,731 15,650,854 - 1,464,905
2007 22,460,000 34,020,000 729,324 14,011,023 - 1,628,026
2006 24,995,000 30,405,000 897,699 10,542,312 - 1,628,026

2005 28,040,000 31,625,000 - 4,065,157 - 1,628,026



Business-Type Actiities

Total Percentage of
Port Other Primary Personal Per
Bonds Loans Government Income Capita
1,090,000 $ 1,073,995 $ 89,729,791 Not Available 2,002
1,240,000 1,122,004 57,918,368 Not Available 1,299
1,380,000 179,419 75,999,854 Not Available 1,432
1,640,000 - 68,343,655 4.32% 1,518
1,640,000 - 72,416,004 4.63% 1,644
1,760,000 2,787,113 75,122,526 4.84% 1,641
1,870,000 2,787,113 76,542,603 4.77% 1,670
1,975,000 2,787,113 77,610,486 4.77% 1,678
2,680,000 1,000,000 72,148,037 4.23% 1,563
3,370,000 - 68,728,183 4.78% 1,359
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Schedule 10

City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Ratios of General Bmded
Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage
Fiscal Gross of Actual Net
Year General Less Debt Net Taxable Bonded
Ended  Estimated Actual Value Obligation Service Bonded Value of Debt Per
9/30 Population (1) of Property (2) Debt (3) Fund Debt Property Capita
2014 44820 $ 4,148,039,041 $ 47,790,000 $ 17,694,871 $ 30,095129 0.73% 671
2013 44,578 4,119,977,109 15,080,000 16,477,727 (1,397,727) -0.03% -31
2012 44,578 4,053,483,907 20,990,000 19,459,156 1,530,844  0.04% 34
2011 44,239 4,094,715,669 12,810,000 13,910,717 (1,100,717) -0.03% -25
2010 44,054 4,110,374,080 14,465,000 12,487,416 1,977,584  0.05% 45
2009 45,766 4,105,612,525 17,110,000 10,826,183 6,283,817  0.15% 137
2008 45,828 3,287,880,918 19,800,000 6,524,693 13,275,307  0.40% 290
2007 46,246 2,560,847,737 22,460,000 3,716,525 18,743,475 0.73% 405
2006 46,166 3,669,091,583 24,995,000 3,651,761 21,343,239  0.58% 462
2005 50,579 3,5637,265,945 28,040,000 4,421,727 23,618,273  0.67% 467

(1) Annual Estimates of the Resident Population for Incorporated Places in Mississippi, April 1, 2004 to July 1, 2(

Retrieved April 17 , 2014 from http://www.census.gov/popest/cities.
fAssessed and
(3) Includes notes; excludes taxincrement debt and debt paid from Enterprise Fund revenues

(2)

Schedul e

Act ual

Val ue

of Propert
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Schedule 11

City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Direct and Overlapping

General Obligation Debt
As of September 30, 2014

General Amount
Obligation Applicable
Bonded Debt Applicable to City of
Outstanding Percentage Biloxi
Jurisdiction
Direct:
City of Biloxi $ 84,091,609 100.00% $ 84,091,609
Overlapping:
Biloxi School District 26,545,472 100.00% 26,545,472
Harrison County 112,118,698 43.98% 49,309,803
City of Biloxi Limited Tax Port Bonds (1) 1,090,000 27.81% 303,129
Total overlappin 139,754,170 76,158,404
Totals $ 223,845,779 $ 160,250,013

(1) Secured by the pledge of the avails of a continuing tax by Harrison County.
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Debt Limit
Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin
Total net debt applicable to the

imit as a percentage of the
debt limit

Schedule 12
City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2014

2013

2012

2011

$ 90,375,780
47,790,000

$ 86,506,249
15,080,000

$ 89,205,082
31,990,000

$ 89,504,365
23,810,000

$ 42,585,780

$ 71,426,249

$ 57,215,082

$ 65,694,365

52.88%

17.43%

26.69%

26.60%



Fiscal Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
$ 90,607,531 $ 90,891,285 $ 74,358,908 $ 58,428,528 $ 81,279,530 $ 77,922,131
25,465,000 28,110,000 30,800,000 33,460,000 31,995,000 31,662,672
$ 65142531 $ 62,781,285 $ 43558908 $ 24968528 $ 49,284,530 $ 46,259,459
28.10% 30.93% 41.42% 57.27% 39.36% 40.63%
Legal Debt Margin Calculated
for Fiscal Year 2014
Assessed Value $ 602,505,198
Debt Limit (15% of assessed value) 90,375,780
Debt applicable to limit:
General obligation bonds 47,790,000
Total debt applicable to limit 47,790,000
Legal debt margin $ 42,585,780
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Schedule 13
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
PledgedRevenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net

Fiscal Revenues
Year Available

Ended Gross Operating for Debt Debt Service Requirements (1)
9/30 Revenues Expenses Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2014 $ 14,120,797 $ 15347555 $ (1,226,758) $ 271,981 $ 91,740 $ 363,721 -337.3%
2013 13,755,104 14,148,263 (393,159) 168,563 88,577 257,140 -152.9%
2012 13,948,732 14,576,313 (627,581) 161,287 29,357 190,644 -329.2%
2011 14,714,316 14,774,817 (60,501) 181,109 35,685 216,794 -27.9%
2010 10,205,341 13,959,998 (3,754,657) 174,896 41,898 216,794 -1731.9%
2009 7,399,448 12,941,452 (5,542,004) 168,903 47,891 216,794 -2556.3%
2008 7,964,405 11,346,358 (3,381,953) 163,121 53,673 216,794 -1560.0%
2007 8,264,274 9,730,830 (1,466,556) - - - N/A
2006 7,212,180 9,925,146 (2,712,966) - - - N/A
2005 9,002,050 12,450,570 (3,448,520) 118,210 58,531 176,741 -1951.2%

(1) State Pollution Control loans. Debt service deferred for 2007 and 2008.
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Schedule 14
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Demographic and
Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Per
Capita
Estimated Personal Personal School Unemployment
Year Population (1)  Income (2) Income (3) Enroliment (4) Rate (5)
2014 44,820 Not available Not available 5,892 7.1
2013 44,820 35,668 1,599,536,160 5,347 8.2
2012 44,578 35,448 1,580,200,944 4,842 8.6
2011 44,239 35,380 1,565,175,820 4,913 9.7
2010 44,054 35,258 1,553,255,932 4,806 9.2
2009 45,766 35,058 1,604,464,428 4,686 7.6
2008 45,828 35,515 1,627,581,420 4,780 5.6
2007 46,246 36,904 1,706,662,384 4,816 55
2006 46,166 31,169 1,438,948,054 4,711 10.4
2005 50,579 29,263 1,480,093,277 6,051 11.0
2004 50,817 26,592 1,351,325,664 6,132 5.2

Annual Estimates of the Resident Population for Incorporated Places in Mississippi
April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2012 Retrieved April 17, 2014 from www.census.gov.
US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic AnaBsisCapita Personal Income 2/

CAI-3 for Harrison County, Mississippi, April, 2012April 17, 2014 from http://www.bea.gov

Calculated by multiplying Estimated Population by Per Capita Personal Income
Biloxi School District.

Annual average monthly percentages for fiscal year, City of Biloxi, Mississippi Department of

Employment Security.
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Schedule 15
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Principal Employers

Current & Eight Years Prior

2014 2006
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Biloxi/Gulfport Biloxi/Gulfport
Metro Area Metro Area
Employer Employees Rank  Employment(2) Employees(l) Rank Employment
Keesler Air Force Base 11,276 1 10.98% 16,000 1 15.69%
Beau Rivage Casino & Resort 2,928 2 2.85% 3,600 2 3.53%
Biloxi Veterans Admin Hospital 1,605 3 1.56% - -
Imperial Palace Casino Resort Spa 1,457 4 1.42% 2,900 3 2.84%
Golden Nugget Casino 1,067 5 1.04% 1,200 5 1.18%
Hard Rock Hotel & Casino Biloxi 1,018 6 0.99% - -
Harrah's Casino Biloxi 762 7 0.74% 1,500 4 1.47%
Biloxi Regional Medical Center 750 8 0.73% 542 10 0.53%
Palace Casino Resort 708 9 0.69% 600 9 0.59%
Biloxi Public School District 670 10 0.65% 720 6 0.71%
City of Biloxi 652 8 0.64%
Boomtown Biloxi Casino 700 7 0.69%
Total 22,241 28,414

The City did not prepare this schedule or accumulate this data prior to 2006.
(1) Source: Harrison County Development Commission.
(2) Source: U.S. Department of Labor; The U.S. Department of Labor combines the City with the Gulfport and other metropoli

and does not segregate by city.
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Schedule 16
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Full-Time Equivalent City Government
Employees by Function/Program
Last Nine Fisal Years

as of September 30

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Function/Program
General Government

Management services 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Finance 6 6 6 6 5 5 7 7 8

Planning 6 6 7 6 7 7 7 7 6

Buiding 13 14 13 14 16 17 15 13 11

Other 44 42 42 39 38 39 41 36 28
Police

Officers 119 120 120 121 129 134 135 121 131

Civilans 51 51 51 52 44 47 46 41 44
Fire

Firefighters and officers 155 161 161 163 168 177 175 174 163

Civilans 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 6
Other public works

Engineering 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 13

Other 82 79 79 82 91 97 100 81 68
Parks and recreation 56 55 57 56 61 63 62 57 61
Water 26 21 21 22 25 28 31 31 18
Port 21 22 22 22 22 24 25 26 21

Total 597 595 597 601 623 655 661 611 579

The City did not prepare this schedule or accumulate this data prior tc
Source: City of Biloxi Human Resources Section.
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Schedule 17
City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011

Function/Program
Police

Physical arrests 7,537 6,931 7,587 7,763

Parking violations 174 162 408 315

Traffic violations 11,485 10,689 14,445 15,229
Fire

Emergency responses 6,327 7,356 7,332 7,194

Inspections 4,500 3,921 3,998 4,047
Water

Average daily consumption 5,212 5,689 5,627 5,507

(thousands of gallons)

Wastewater

Average daily sewage treatment 8,626 9,614 9,510 8,003

(thousands of gallons)

Sources: Various departments of City of Biloxi.



Fiscal Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

7,971 9,108 9,953 8421 10,171 16,351
128 232 103 98 245 441
16,222 19,490 13,278 3,197 5,622 7,838
6,883 6,500 6,338 5,873 5,729 5117
3,759 3,856 4,491 4,076 4,056 3,270
4,850 5,380 5,559 5414 5,910 5,739
9,680 9,779 8,927 7,909 7,398 10,859
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Function/Program

Police
Stations
Patrol units

Fire Stations

Other public works
Streets (miles)
Traffic signals

Parks and recreation
Acreage
Playgrounds
Ballfields
Community centers

Water
Water mains
Fire hydrants
Storage capacity

Schedule 18

City of Biloxi, Mississippi
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Years

(thousands of gallons)

Wastewater
Sanitary sewers
Treatment capacity

Fiscal Year

2014 2013 2012 2011
1 1 1 1
126 125 124 123
9 9 9 9
290 287 220 220
64 64 40 40
258 258 258 258
20 20 20 20
30 30 30 30
5 5 5 5
253 253 251 251
2,016 2,015 1,890 1,890
14,793 14,793 14,793 14,793
243 243 235 235
23,700 23,700 21,582 21,582

(thousands of gallons)

Sources: Various departments of City of Biloxi.



Fiscal Year

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
1 1 1 1 1 1
128 135 144 144 135 136
9 9 9 9 9 9
220 220 217 217 215 215
40 40 40 40 40 40
258 258 258 258 258 161
20 20 20 20 20 -
30 30 30 30 30 -
5 2 2 2 2 2
251 234 234 234 234 234
1,890 1,820 1,786 1,729 1,729
14,793 14,793 14,793 14,793 14,793 14,793
235 235 235 235 235 235
21,582 21,582 21,582 21,582 21,582 21,582
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Section IV

Compliance Section



Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards



City of Biloxi, Mississippi

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Grantor Federal Agency / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Federal
Agency / Program Title Number Grantor No. Expenditures
Department of Justice
United States Department of Justice Direct Programs
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 08LE122 $ 16,085
Pass through University of Southern Mississippi
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 GR04134-03-10 554
Total 16,639
Department of Defense
Mississippi Environmental Infrastructure (Section 592) - ARRA 12.124 72,720
Total 72,720
Department of Housing & Urban Development
Community Planning & Development
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 530,631
Pass through Mississippi Development Authority
Community Development Block Grants/State's Program and Non-Entitlement Grants in HawWa#28  R-103-122-01-KCR 430,958
Total 961,589
Department of Transportation
Pass through Mississippi Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction (Federal-Aid Highway Program) 20.205 1,157,796
Total 1,157,796
Department of the Interior
Pass through Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
Coastal Impact Assistance Program 15.668 MS.R.731 22,197
Total 22,197
Department of Homeland Se curity
Pass through MEMA
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 7,883
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 FEMA 1604 35,984,215
Total 35,992,098
Environmental Protection Agency
Pass through MDEQ Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 SRF-C280756-06 19,583
Total 19,583
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 38,242,622
See I ndependent Auditorsd Repor
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City of Biloxi, Mi ssissippi
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Note AT Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of thecity of Biloxi, Mississippi under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 304.20Ihe information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB CirculaB3) Audits of States,

Local Governments, anNonProfit Organizations Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of The City of Biloxi, Mississippi, it is not intended to and
does not present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of The City of
Biloxi, Mississippi.

Note Bi Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1.

General

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues when thaynaceand
expenditures when they are incurred. The expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained in OMB Circular-87 Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal
Governments

. Contingency

The grant revenue amounts receige subject to audit and adjustment. If any expenditures
are disallowed by the grantor agency as a result of such an audit, any claim for reimbursement
to the grantor agencies would become a liability to the City. In the opinion of management,
all grart expenditures are in compliance with the terms of the grant agreements and applicable
federal laws and regulations.

. Loan and Loan Guarantees

In accordance with OMB Circular-A33, loans and loan guarantees include new loans made
during the year, plugrior year loans for which the federal government imposes continuing
compliance requirements.
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A

I ndependent Auditorsd Report on I nte
Financial Reporting on Compliance and Other Matters
Basedon an Audit of Financial Statements Performedn

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards



CULUMBER, HARVLY
& ASSOCIATES, P.A.

Cerilied Public Accountants and Consaltants

To the City Council
City of Biloxi, Mississippi

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to finaaaiits contained irGovernment
Auditing Standardsssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the busitypgsactivities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each méyod, and the aggregate remaining fund information of

the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 3@, 2ail the related

notes to the financial statements, which collectively comgheeCi t y of Bi | ox i ,
basicfinancial statements, and have issoead report thereon datekligust 19 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we consitheré€tity of

Bil oxi, Mi s s i s s i verdinadcgl rapartinge (mteraal contra) riot deterrhine ¢he
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness ofthe Ci ty of Bil oxi, Mi ssissippib6s inte
express an opinion on the effectivenesthelCi t y of Bil oxi, Mississip

A deficiency in internatontrol exists when the design or operation of atoal does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basimatéyial weaknesss a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intdroontrol, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a materi al mi sstatement of
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.sighificant deficiencyis a deficiency, or a
combination of de€iencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph bthis section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficienaies therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identifi€sliven these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questtboosts that we consider to be a significant
deficiency. 2014..






